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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

The directors have the pleasure of submitting their third annual report, together with the audited financial statements of AgriBank
plc (“the Bank”) and its subsidiary AgriFunding 13-1 Limited (together “the Group”) and AgriBank plc for the year ended 30 June
2015.

Principal Activities

Operational Review

The Bank is licensed as a credit institution under the 8anking Act, Cap.371. The Bank has obtained wholesale bank financing and is
engaged in taking online funding from customers in the UK and through financial intermediaries in Malta. The funds received by
the Bank are covered by the Depositor Compensation Scheme. It provides finance in the form of finance lease, hire-purchase
agreements and loans to customers in the agricultural sector in the UK.

The third financial period of the Bank for the year ended 30 June 2015 was a period of changes including a change in the main UK
broker which resulted in months of slow lending and a reduction in the group’s lending portfolio. However, the Bank did finalize
agreements with lending introducers in the UK and was also granted the Depositor’s Compensation Scheme Coverage by the
Regulator for the bank’s deposits which triggered a restructuring of the bank’s funding.

Results and dividends

It was a year in which the Group saw a consolidation in its statement of financial position. For year end June 2015, the Group
registered a net loss for the financial year of GBP 584,581 (2014: GBP 293,398), while the Bank’s net loss for the year amounted to
GBP 322,651 (2014: net loss of GBP 463,651).

No dividend is being recommended as the Bank had no distributable reserves.

Board of Directors

The following directors served on the Board during the period from 1 July 2014 to date

Dr Joseph Borg (Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr Victor Rizzo Giusti (Non-Executive Director)

Mr Roderick Psaila (Chief Executive and Director)

Mr Paul Grech (Chief Financial Officer and Director)

Ms Karen Cramer

Mr Ronald Baird

Preparation of Financial Statements and Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are required by the Companies Act (Cap.386) to prepare financial statements for each financial period in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Bank and Group as at the end of the financial period and of the results of their operations and cash flows for the period then
ended. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable; and

- Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Bank and the
Group will continue in business as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and Bank and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Banking Act (Cap. 371) and the Companies Act (Cap. 386). This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
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such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and the
Group, and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

After reviewing the Bank’s and Group’s plans for the coming financial years, the directors are satisfied that at the time of approving
the financial statements, it is appropriate to continue adopting the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Auditors

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte Audit Limited as auditor of the Bank and Group will be propose at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors, authorised for issue on 29 September 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

Dr Joseph Borg Mr Roderick Psaila ul G ch
Chairman Director and CEO Director and CFO



RISK MANAGEMENT & CONTROL

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

Overview of risk disclosures

These disclosures have been prepared for the Bank in accordance with the Pillar 3 quantitative and qualitative disclosure
requirements as governed by Banking Rule 07: Publication of Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of Credit Institutions
authorised under the Banking Act, 1994, issued by the Malta Financial Services Authority. These disclosures will be published by
the Group on an annual basis as part of the Annual Report. The Rule follows the disclosure requirements of the EU Directive
2006/48/EC; more specifically to the disclosure requirements of Chapter 5 of the Directive (Articles 145 to 149 — Disclosures by
credit institutions) and Annex XII (Technical criteria on disclosure).

As per banking regulations, this report is not subject to an external audit, except to the extent that any disclosures are equivalent to
those made in the financial statements which adhere to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU.
The Group is satisfied that internal verification procedures ensure that these additional regulatory disclosures are presented fairly.

In accordance with the Group’s Pillar 3 disclosure policy which sets out the disclosure process, verification and frequency, this
report is currently published once a year.

Risk management and control principles

Taking, managing and controlling risk is core to AgriBank’s business. The aim is not, therefore, to eliminate all risks but to achieve
an appropriate balance between risk and return. When in full operation, AgriBanks approach to risk management and control is
based on five principles:

- business management throughout the Bank is accountable for all the risks assumed or incurred by their business
operations and is responsible for the continuous and active management of risk exposures to ensure that risk and return
are balanced;

- an independent control process is an integral part of the Group’s structure — its goal is to provide an objective check on
risk-taking activities and to support senior management in achieving appropriate alignment of the interests of all
stakeholders including shareholders, clients and employees;

- comprehensive, transparent and objective risk disclosure to senior management, the Board of Directors (B0D),
shareholders, regulators, rating agencies and other stakeholders is an essential component of the risk control process;

- earnings protection is based on limiting the scope for adverse variations in earnings and exposure to stress events —

controls are applied at the level of individual exposures and portfolios in each business and to risk in aggregate, across all
businesses and major risk types, relative to the Groups risk capacity. It specifically refers to the level of risk AgriBank is
capable of absorbing, based on its anticipated earnings power; and

- protection of AgriBank’s reputation ultimately depends on the effective management and control of the risks incurred in
the course of business.

The principles are the foundation upon which the more detailed risk management and control frameworks are built. These
frameworks comprise both qualitative elements, including policies and authorities, and quantitative components including limits.
They are continually adapted and enhanced as AgriBanks business and the market environment evolve.

Risk management and control responsibilities

The BOD has a strategic and supervisory function, It is responsible for the Groups fundamental approach to risk, for approving the
risk principles and for determining risk capacity and risk appetite. The Chief Executive Officer is the executive responsible for risk
policy and its implementation and enforcement.
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The Audit Committee acts as the Risk Council of the BoD excluding Credit Risk. In this capacity, it oversees the risk profile of the
Group on behalf of the BoD and oversees implementation of the risk management and control principles.

The Credit Risk Committee has the overall responsibility for the development, implementation and enforcement of AgriBank’s risk
principles. This includes establishing risk control frameworks, formulating risk policies and determining methodologies for
measurement and assessment of risk. The Head of Credit is the executive responsible for credit risk policy and its implementation
and enforcement.

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is responsible for transparency in the financial performance of AgriBank and its business groups,
including high-quality and timely reporting and disclosure in line with regulatory requirements, corporate governance standards
and global best practice. The CFO is responsible for implementation of the risk principles in the areas of capital management,
liquidity, funding and tax and together with the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for operational risk issues.

The Head of Compliance is responsible for implementing the risk principles in the area of compliance. Together with the Chief
Executive Officer, the Head of Compliance is also responsible for the legal risk area.

All employees, but in particular those involved in risk decisions, must make AgriBanks reputation an overriding concern.
Responsibility for AgriBank’s reputation cannot be delegated or syndicated.

The risk control process

There are five key elements in the independent risk control process that is being implemented now that the Group is in full
operation:

— risk policies to implement the risk principles, reflecting AgriBank’s risk capacity and risk appetite, and consistent with
evolving business requirements and international best practice. AgriBank’s risk policies are principle-based, specifying
minimum requirements, high-level controls and standards, and broad authorities and responsibilities — they are never a
substitute for the exercise of sound business judgment but, rather, guide in determining actions and decisions;

- risk identification through continuous monitoring of portfolios, assessment of risks in new businesses and complex or
unusual transactions, and ongoing review of the risk profile in the light of market developments and external events;

- risk measurement using methodologies and models which are independently verified and approved;

- risk control by monitoring and enforcing compliance with risk principles, policies and limits, and with regulatory
requirements; and

- transparent risk reporting to stakeholders, and to management at all levels, on all relevant aspects of the approved risk
control framework, including limits.

The Group is developing control processes around the establishment of new businesses, and the execution of complex or unusual
transactions. These processes involve the business, and potentially all the control functions — risk control, legal, compliance,
treasury, finance, tax and logistics, as necessary. The objective is to ensure that all critical elements are addressed across
disciplines. A key aspect is whether transactions can be booked in a way that will permit appropriate ongoing risk management,
measurement, control and reporting.

Senior management is tasked with compiling a dynamic Risk Register which defines, measures and discloses the probability and
impact of all risk areas separately and combined on the Group’s asset and earning base, through quantitative and qualitative
calculations.

Risk categories

Business risks are the risks associated with a chosen business strategy—it is business management’s responsibility to respond to
fundamental changes in the economic environment and the competitive landscape. Business risks are not subject to independent
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RISK MANAGEMENT & CONTROI

risk control but will be factored into the Groups planning and budgeting process and the assessment of AgriBank’s risk capacity and
overall risk exposure.

The primary and operational risks inherent in business activities are subject to independent risk control.

Primary risks are:

- credit risk — the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a client or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. It
arises on traditional banking products, such as loans and commitments, and on derivatives and similar transactions. A
form of credit risk also arises on securities and other obligations in tradable form. Their fair values are affected by
changing expectations about the probability of failure to meet obligations as well as actual failures. Where these
instruments are held in connection with a trading activity, AgriBank controls the risk as market risk;

- liquidity and funding risk — the risk that AgriBank might be unable to meet its payment obligations when due, or to
borrow funds in the market on an unsecured or secured basis at an acceptable price to fund actual or proposed
commitments.

- operational risk - the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from
external causes, whether deliberate, accidental or natural. Operational risks must be monitored, and are controlled and
mitigated to the extent possible and desirable.

Quantitative controls

In principle, for risks that are quantifiable, AgriBank will be measuring potential loss at three levels — expected loss, statistical loss
and stress loss.

Expected loss is the loss that is expected to arise on average over time in connection with an activity. It is an inherent cost of such
activity, and must be factored into business plans. For lending instruments carried at amortised cost, expected loss is reflected
through tests of impairment and any probability of default of single borrowers and immediately provided through specific
allowances. General allowances will be provided based on past actual default rates.

Stress loss is the loss that could arise from extreme events, typically beyond the confidence level of the statistical loss estimate,
and is normally a scenario-based measure.

Concentration controls complement portfolio risk measures. Controls are generally applied where the Group identifies that
positions in different lending portfolios are affected by changes in the same risk factor or group of correlated factors and there is
the potential for significant loss in the event of extreme but plausible adverse developments. AgriBanks concentration controls
include credit limits for individual clients, counterparties and counterparty groups.

“Earnings-at-risk” and “Capital-at-risk

To complement the day-to-day operating controls, AgriBank has developed and will be implementing two concepts — “Earnings,at
risk’ and “Capital-at-risk’ — to assess aggregate risk exposure across risk types and businesses against its financial resources. These
measures assess Agrisank’s ability to absorb the potential loss inherent in its business in the current economic cycle, across all
business lines, and from all major sources, including primary risks, operational risks and business risks.

Earnings-at-risk focuses on AgriBank’s ability to absorb losses from current earnings, while capital-at-risk considers more extreme
losses and their potential to lead to a breach of minimum regulatory capital requirements or, ultimately, to insolvency. Capital-at-
risk is an input to the capital management process.

Earnings-at-risk is planned to be an integral part of the risk control and is monitored by the senior management as part of the
regular risk reporting cycle. The concept reflects AgriBanks view that the first and primary resource to absorb losses is a firm’s
earnings stream. Earnings-at-risk has three elements — risk capacity, risk exposure and risk appetite.

Risk capacity is the level of risk AgriBank considers itself capable of absorbing, based on its earnings power, without damage to its
dividend paying ability, its strategic plans and, ultimately, its reputation and ongoing business viability It is based on a combination



of budgeted / forecast and historical revenues and costs, adjusted for performance-related compensation, and dividends and
related taxes.

Risk exposure is an estimate of potential loss based on current and prospective risk limits and risk positions across major risk
categories — primary risks, operational risk and business risk. The measure builds on the statistical loss measures used in the day-to
day operating controls as far as possible, extending their time horizons where necessary, with adjustments and supplements
determined by management to reflect known coverage gaps, measurement weaknesses and potential events. The results are
combined to reflect potential correlations between the various risk categories under the severe scenarios envisaged.

A comparison of risk exposure with risk capacity serves as a basis for determining the appropriateness of current or proposed risk
limits, and AgriBank’s ability to pay a cash dividend out of its earnings. It is also one of the tools available to management to guide
decisions on adjustments to the risk profile.

Risk appetite is established by the BoD, who set an upper bound on aggregate risk exposure in the form of a ‘risk exposure ceiling!!.
It is appropriate that risk exposure should be less than risk capacity.

As with any model, Earnings-at-risk is heavily dependent on the many assumptions and estimates that are necessarily entailed in
determining the inputs and generating the output, not least because risk exposure includes a combination of statistical and more
judgmental elements. Measured risk exposure must be understood in this context. Risk capacity and risk exposure are,
furthermore, dynamic measures, affected significantly by the external environment which will impact, for example, correlations
between risk categories, the liquidity of AgriBank’s positions, the potential to reduce or hedge them at reasonable prices, and
AgriBank’s funding costs.

Capital-at-risk builds off the Earnings-at-risk concept but assesses the potential for losses to exceed earnings capacity and erode
capital. For Capital-at-risk, the analysis of risk exposure is essentially the same as for Earnings-at-risk but measured at two higher
confidence levels — the first in relation to AgriBank’s minimum regulatory capital requirement, and the second in terms of solvency.

The Capital-at-risk measure of aggregate risk exposure is an important consideration in the assessment of capital adequacy.

Like Earnings-at-risk, Capital-at-risk relies on the day-to-day risk control measures and will potentially underestimate aggregate
exposure if these measures do not fully capture the risks.

Qualitative controls

Although measurement of risk is clearly important, quantification does not always tell the whole story, and not all risks are
quantifiable. Due diligence, sound judgment, common sense and an appreciation of a wide range of potential outcomes — including
a willingness to challenge assumptions — are key components of a strong risk culture for both risk management and risk control.
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RISK CONCERTRATIONS

RISK CONCENTRATIONS

A concentration of risk exists where positions in the lending financial instruments are affected by changes in the same risk factor or
group of correlated factors, and the exposure could, in the event of extreme but plausible adverse developments, result in
significant losses. The identification of risk concentrations necessarily entails judgment about potential future developments, which
cannot be predicted with certainty. In determining whether a concentration of risk exists, risk controllers consider a number of
elements, both individually and in combination including the risk reward profile of the positions. If a risk concentration is identified,
it is assessed to determine whether it should be reduced or the risk should be mitigated, and the available means to do so.
Identified concentrations are subject to increased monitoring.
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CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from failure by a client or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations to
Agrisank. This can be caused by factors directly related to the counterparty, such as business or management problems, or from
failures in the settlement process, for example on a foreign exchange transaction, where the Group honours its obligation but the
counterparty fails to deliver the counter-value (settlement risk). Alternatively, it can be triggered by economic or political
difficulties in the country in which the counterparty is based or where it has substantial assets (country risk).

Sources of credit risk

Credit risk is inherent in lending products of the Group namely asset financing through hire purchase and finance lease agreements
and loans. The risk control processes applied to these products are fundamentally the same, and they are valued at amortised cost.
Moreover, cash balances with other banks also carry a certain level of credit risk.

Credit risk control organization and governance

Effective credit risk control is critical to AgriBank’s safety and soundness. The credit risk control framework is based on the risk
management and control principles, supported by credit policies, It has both qualitative and quantitative elements. AgriBank has
established processes to ensure that risks are identified, assessed, pre-approved where necessary, and continuously monitored and
reported. Measures and limits are applied to the credit risk of individual counterparties and counterparty groups, and the quality
and diversification of portfolios and sub-portfolios are assessed, a key objective being to control risk concentrations.

The Credit Risk Committee assesses the creditworthiness of individual counterparties and the adequacy and effectiveness of any
security or credit hedges, and evaluating credit risk in portfolios, sub-portfolios and other aggregations, including country risk.

The Board of Directors may in the future be delegating appropriate authority to senior management including the Head of Credit.
The level of credit authority delegated to holders depends on their seniority and experience. These authorities will encompass all
aspects of the approval of credit risk, including settlement risk, and the determination of allowances, provisions and credit
valuation adjustments for any impaired claims.

Credit risk control

Limits and controls

The Group has established limits to constrain exposure to individual counterparties and counterparty groups and at portfolio and
sub-portfolio levels, wherever risk concentrations are identified, including exposure to specific industries and countries, where
appropriate.

At the level of the individual counterparty and counterparty group, the authorised officers will establish limits for all types of
exposure. Credit engagements may not be entered into without the appropriate approvals and limits.

Limits will be applied in a variety of forms to portfolios or sectors, where necessary, to restrict risk concentrations or areas of higher
risk, or to control the rate of portfolio growth. The impact of variations in default rates and asset values is assessed using stress
scenarios, taking into account risk concentrations. Stress loss limits will be applied to portfolios where considered necessary,
including limits on exposures. For all exposures, the credit quality and cash flow generation capacity of the counterparty over the
full term of the obligation are at the heart of the credit assessment.

Risk mitigation

Agri8ank exerts risk mitigation techniques for its credit portfolios. For hire purchase financing and financial leasing, AgriBank holds
legal title to the underlying assets for which the financing has been granted. Loan to Value ratios are normally kept below 80%.

Reporting

An essential element of the credit risk control process is transparent and objective risk reporting. The Head of Credit will be
responsible for risk reporting covering both exposure to individual counterparties from all products and activities, and portfolio
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OPERATIONAl. RISK

risks. The Head of Credit will also supply regular and ad hoc risk information to the Credit Risk Committee, the Board of Directors
and Regulators where applicable.

Credit risk measurement

Credit risk measurement is an essential component of the credit risk control framework. The measurement of credit exposure from
a loan which is fully drawn is straightforward. The assessment of portfolio risk also entails estimations of the likelihood of defaults
occurring, of the associated loss ratios if they do, and of default correlations between counterparties.

AgriBank has developed tools to support the quantification of credit risk of individual counterparties, applying the three generally
accepted parameters: probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default.

In line with AgriBank’s internal governance standards and the requirements of the new regulatory capital framework (Basel Ill), the
development and maintenance of models will conform to global standards, and the models and their components will be subject to
independent verification before implementation. Models must comply with established measurement standards to ensure
consistency and allow meaningful aggregation of credit risk across all businesses, and will be reviewed and updated on an ongoing
basis

Credit risk parameters

Three parameters will be used to measure and control individual counterparty credit risk:

- the “probability of default”, which is an estimate of the likelihood of the client or counterparty defaulting on its
contractual obligations. This probability is assessed using rating tools tailored to the various categories of counterparties.
Besides their use for credit risk measurement, ratings will be an important element in setting credit risk authorities;

- the likely recovery ratio on the defaulted claims, which is a function of the type of counterparty and any credit mitigation
or support (such as security or guarantee), from which the “loss given default” is determined;

- the current exposure to the counterparty and its possible future development, from which potential “exposure at
default” is derived. In measuring individual counterparty exposure against credit limits, the Group considers the
“maximum likely exposure” measured to a high confidence level over the full life of all outstanding obligations, whereas
in aggregating exposures to different counterparties for portfolio risk measurement, the expected exposure to each
counterparty at a given time horizon (usually one year) generated by the same model is used.

These parameters will be the basis for most internal measures of credit risk.

Expected loss

Credit losses must be expected as an inherent cost of doing business. But the occurrence of credit losses is erratic in both timing
and amount, and those that arise usually relate to transactions entered into in previous accounting periods. In order to reflect the
fact that future credit losses are implicit in today’s portfolio, AgriBank uses the concept of “expected loss”.

Expected credit loss is a statistically based concept which is used to estimate the annual costs that are expected to arise, on
average, from positions in the current portfolio that become impaired. The expected loss for a given credit facility is a function of
the three components described above — probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default. The expected loss
figures for individual counterparties are aggregated to derive the expected credit loss for the whole portfolio.

Expected loss is the foundation of credit risk quantification in all portfolios. It is an input to the valuation or pricing of some
products, and the determinant of credit risk costs charged to the business in the management accounts, which differs from the
credit loss expense reported under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Expected loss is also the starting point for the
measurement of portfolio statistical loss and stress loss.

Composition of credit risk

The measures of credit risk differ, depending on the purpose for which exposures are aggregated — financial accounting under IFRS,
determination of regulatory capital, or AgriBank’s own internal management view, i.e. the way credit portfolio risk is managed.
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Total gross credit exposure as at 30 June 2015 for the Group to GBP 24,186,220 (2014: GBP 22,810,779) and for the Bank to GBP
16,276,608 (2014: GBP 8,103,719) inclusive of hire purchase and finance leases financing and loans (Note 29 to Financial
Statements).

Settlement risk

Settlement risk arises in transactions involving exchange of value when the Group must honor its obligation to deliver without first
being able to determine that the counter-value has been received.

Impairment and default — distressed claims

AgriBank has classifications for distressed claims.

A loan carried at amortised cost is considered to be past due’ when a significant payment has been missed. It is classified as “non-
performing” where payment of interest, principal or fees is overdue by more than 90 days and there is no firm evidence that the
claim will be settled by later payments or the liquidation of collateral; or when insolvency proceedings have commenced against
the borrower; or when obligations have been restructured on concessionary terms.

Any claim, regardless of accounting treatment, is classified as “impaired’ if AgriBank considers it probable that it will suffer a loss
on that claim as a result of the obligor’s inability to meet its obligations according to the contractual terms, and after realization of
any available collateral. ‘Obligations’ in this context include interest payments, principal repayments or other payments due.

Impairment under amortised cost valuation is recognised through the creation of an allowance or provision, which is charged to the
statements of comprehensive income as credit loss expense. Portfolios of claims carried at amortised cost with similar credit risk
characteristics are also assessed for collective impairment. A portfolio is considered impaired on a collective basis if there is
objective evidence to suggest that it contains impaired obligations but the individual impaired items cannot yet be identified.

AgriBank will be reviewing individual positions for impairment only after they have been in arrears for a certain time. Thus, to cover
the time lag between the occurrence of an impairment event and its identification, collective loan loss allowances are established,
based on the expected loss measured for the portfolio over the average period between trigger events and their identification for
individual impairments.

Past due but not impaired loans

Past due but not impaired loans have suffered missed payments but are not considered impaired because AgriBank expects
ultimately to collect all amounts due under the contractual terms of the loans or with equivalent value.

Impaired loans, allowances and provisions

There were impaired lending agreements and both general and specific allowances for impairments were provided for as at 30 June
2015.

In general, AgriBank’s practice is to write off non-performing loans, in whole or in part, much sooner than the final settlement of
bankruptcy proceedings, sale of the underlying assets, or formal debt forgiveness, thereby reducing the amount of such loans and
corresponding allowances recorded.

Agrisank will execute foreclosures by taking possession and disposing of the underlying assets to which it holds title or by
constituting the liens. Collaterals in the form of financial assets are liquidated in the most expeditious manner and at prices
considered fair. This may require that it purchases assets for its own account, where permitted bylaw, pending orderly liquidation.

Credit loss expense

AgriBank’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS, under which credit toss expense charged to the statements
of comprehensive income in any period the sum of net allowances and direct write-offs minus recoveries is arising in that period,
i.e. the credit losses actually incurred. By contrast, for internal management reporting, credit loss expense is based on the expected
loss concept described under “Credit risk measurement”.
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OPERATIONAL RISK

Rating system design and estimation of credit risk parameters

Probability of default

Agrisank will be assessing the likelihood of default of individual counterparties using rating tools tailored to the various
counterparty segments. The performance of rating tools, including their predictive power with regard to default events, is regularly
validated and model parameters are adjusted as necessary.

Loss given default

Loss given default or loss severity represents AgriBank’s expectation of the extent of loss on a claim should default occur. It is
expressed as percentage loss per unit of exposure and typically varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim, and
availability of collateral or other credit mitigation. Loss given default estimates cover loss of principal, interest and other amounts
due (including work-out costs), and also consider the costs of carrying the impaired position during the work-out process.

Exposure at default

Exposure at default represents the amounts AgriBank expects to be owed at the time of default.

For outstanding loans, the exposure at default will be the drawn amount or face value. For loan commitments and for contingent
liabilities, it includes any amount already drawn plus the further amount which is expected to be drawn at the time of default,
should it occur. This calculation is based on a “credit conversion factor”, a fixed percentage per product type derived from historical
experience of drawings under commitments by counterparties within the year prior to their default.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external
causes, whether deliberate, accidental or natural. It will be inherent in all AgriBank’s activities, not only in the business the Group
and the Bank conducts but due to the fact it is a business — because AgriBank is an employer, it may own and occupy property and
hold assets, including information, belonging to both the Group and the Bank, as well as its clients. The approach to operational risk
is not designed to eliminate risk per se but, rather, to contain it within acceptable levels, as determined by senior management, and
to ensure that the Group and the Bank have sufficient information to make informed decisions about additional controls,
adjustments to controls, or other risk responses. The CEO and the CFO share the responsibility for the independence, objectivity
and effectiveness of the operational risk framework.

Operational risk framework

Every function, whether a front-end business or a control or logistics unit, must manage the operational risks that arise from its
own activities. Because these risks are all pervasive, with a failure in one area potentially impacting many others, the Group’s
framework will be based on mutual oversight across all functions. Each area of operations will therefore have established cross-
functional cooperation with the Risk Management unit as an integral part of its governance structure, to actively manage
operational risk.

The foundation of the operational risk framework is the definition by all functions of their roles and responsibilities so that,
collectively, they can ensure that there is adequate segregation of duties, complete coverage of risks and clear accountability. From
this analysis, they will develop control objectives and standards to protect the Group’s tangible and intangible assets and interests,
based on the types of operational risk events that might arise, ranging from daily reconciliation problems to potentially severe
events such as fraud. The Group recognizes that it cannot eliminate all risks, because errors and accidents will always happen, and
that even where it is possible it is not always cost effective to do so. AgriBank’s internal control framework will differentiate
potential events depending on their likely frequency and impact. Its mitigation and avoidance efforts will be focused on areas
where the Group believes it is most exposed to severe events — including both those that are reasonably foreseeable and those
that, while not predictable, are thought to be reasonably possible. For lower impact risks AgriBank will concentrate on
management and monitoring.
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The functions will monitor compliance with their controls and assess their operating effectiveness in several ways, including self-
certification by staff, and evaluation of responses by management. The implications of internal and external audit findings and
other relevant sources of information will also be assessed.

As major operational risk events occur, AgriBank will assess their causes and the implications for its control framework, whether or
not they lead to direct financial loss. This will include events affecting third parties that are relevant to the Group’s and the Banks
business if sufficient information is made public. It is important to use all available information to test the control framework
because, even if an internal event does not lead to a direct or indirect financial loss, it may indicate that AgriBanks standards are
not being complied with.

The totality of this information will be reviewed by functional managers to assess their operational risk exposure and the actions
needed to address specific issues. These issues will be formally captured on the risk register, which will form the basis of reporting
to the board of directors.

Operational risk measurement

Agrisank will be developing a model for quantification of operational risk from the existent Basic Indicator Approach to the
Standard Approach and after a suitable track record to the Advanced Measurement Approach, which meets the regulatory capital
standard under Basel Ill Advanced Measurement Approach (AMA). It will have two main components.

The historical component will be based on Agrisank’s own internal losses and is used primarily to determine the expected loss
portion of the capital requirement.

The scenario component of the AMA model will be used primarily to determine the unexpected loss portion of the capital
requirement. It will be based on a set of generic scenarios that represent categories of operational risks to which the Group will be
exposed. The scenarios themselves will be generated from an analysis of internal and external event information, the current
business environment, and AgriBanks own internal control environment through comparison to the risk inventory. For each
scenario, AgriBank will estimate a base case mainly derived from its own experience, a stressed case mainly derived from
integrating experiences of select peers and a worst case based on events experienced by an expanded set of peers in the financial
industry. The scenarios will be reviewed at least annually by experts in the relevant subject matter and their risk control
counterparts to ensure their validity and may be updated based on material new information or events that occur.

The Group does not set limits on operational risk but will report the measured risk through the standard reporting processes.

The operational risk framework is primarily qualitative rather than quantitative — financial losses and capital considerations are only
one, and not the most important, element. The Group uses the operational risk framework as the basis for specialist internal
control assessments in areas such as legal, compliance, tax and human resources and to meet internal control-related regulatory
requirements, such as Basel III.
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LIQUIDITY AND FUNDING RISK MANAGEMENT

LIQUIDITY AND FUNDING RISK MANAGEMENT

Liquidity risk is the risk of being Unable to raise funds to meet payment obligations when they fall due. Funding risk is the risk of
being unable, on an ongoing basis, to borrow funds in the market at an acceptable price to fund actual or proposed commitments
and thereby support Agrisanks current business and desired strategy. Liquidity and funding are not the same, but they are closely
related and both are critical to a credit institution.

Liquidity must be continuously managed to ensure that the Group and the Sank can survive a crisis, whether it is a general market
event, a localised difficulty affecting a smaller number of institutions, or a problem unique to an individual firm. An institution that
is unable to meet its liabilities when they fall due may collapse, even though it is not insolvent, because it is unable to borrow on an
unsecured basis, or does not have sufficient good quality assets to borrow against or liquid assets to sell to raise immediate cash.

Liquidity approach

AgriBanks approach to liquidity management is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking sustained damage to its various
business franchises.

Central to the integrated framework is an assessment of all material, known and expected cash flows and the level of high-grade
collateral that could be used to raise additional funding. It entails both careful monitoring and control of the daily liquidity position,
and regular liquidity stress testing.

The liquidity position will be assessed and managed under a variety of potential scenarios encompassing both normal and stressed
market conditions. The Group will consider the possibility that its access to markets could be impacted by a stress event affecting
some part of its business or, in the extreme case, if it was to suffer a period of general market uncertainty.

Liquidity management

The Group will manage its liquidity position in order to be able to ride out a crisis without damaging the ongoing viability of its
business. This is complemented by the Group’s funding risk management which aims to achieve the optimal liability structure to
finance its businesses cost-efficiently and reliably. The long term stability and security of Agrisanks funding in turn will help protect
its liquidity position in the event of an AgriBank-specific crisis.

Liquidity modeling and contingency planning

The daily liquidity position — the net cumulative funding requirement for a specific day — will be projected under cautious
assumptions for each business day from the current day out to one month to produce a cumulative cash ladder. The short-term
cash ladder is the tool used by Treasury to manage net daily funding requirements efficiently, and monitor liquidity exposure
against limits set by the BoD.

AgriBank will also be regularly assessing the impact of a liquidity crisis scenario, combining a firm-specific crisis with market
disruption and focusing on a time horizon starting with overnight and extending up to one year. This AgriBank-specific scenario
envisages large draw-downs on otherwise stable client deposits, an inability to renew or replace maturing unsecured funding and
limited capacity to generate liquidity from trading assets. Liquidity crisis scenario analysis will support the liquidity management
process so that immediate corrective measures, such as the build-up of a liquidity buffer to absorb potential sudden liquidity gaps,
can be put into effect.

The starting point for stress testing analyses will be a breakdown of the contractual maturity of AgriBanks assets and liabilities.
Since a liquidity crisis could have a myriad of causes, the Group will focus on a scenario that encompasses all potential stress effects
across all markets, currencies and products.

The assessment will include the likelihood of maturing assets and liabilities being rolled over in an AgriBank-specific crisis, and
gauge the extent to which the potential crisis-induced shortfall could be covered by available funding. It will also factor in potential
liquidity outflows from contingent liabilities, in particular those resulting from the drawdown of committed credit lines.

Liquidity needs may also result from commitments and contingencies, including credit lines extended to secure the liquidity needs
of clients. AgriBank will be regularly monitoring undrawn committed credit facilities and other latent liquidity risks.
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Liquidity limits and controls

While its estimated capacity to generate liquidity when required will naturally vary, AgriBank will generally apply a constant limit
structure, which imposes a ceiling on the projected net funding requirement along the cash ladder. Limits are based on the amount
of cash AgriBank believes it could raise in a firm-specific crisis.

The Group will also be developing detailed contingency plans for liquidity crisis management, the cornerstone of which is the
Group’s access to secured funding either from the market or from the relevant central banks, coupled with the ability to turn
sufficient liquid assets into cash within a short time frame.

The liquidity contingency plan will be an integral part of the global crisis management concept, which covers all types of crisis
events, It would be implemented under a core crisis team with representatives from Treasury, and from other related areas
including the functions responsible for payments and settlements, market and credit risk control, collateral and margin
management, and information technology and infrastructure.

Liquidity ratios

In addition to the limits and controls described above, the Group will also measure two ratios to monitor liquidity risk.

The Liquidity coverage ratio which addresses short term liquidity (one month) on a monthly basis. Banks will need to have sufficient
liquidity to cover all projected outflQws on a stress-tested basis, and without relying on any parent bank funding.

The Net Stable Funding Ratio which aims at ensuring a sound funding structure over one year in an extended stress scenario. Assets
have to be matched, to a predetermined extent depending on their liquidity profile at a one year horizon, with sources of funding
that can be considered stable over the same one year horizon.

Funding

Through broad diversification of its funding sources (by market, product and currency), AgriBank plans to create and maintain a
well-balanced portfolio of liabilities, which will generate a stable flow of financing and provide protection in the event of market
disruptions. This, together with its centralised funding management, will enable the Group to pursue a strategy of efficient funding
of business activities.

Funding approach

Medium- and long-term funding activities will be planned by assessing the overall funding profile of the balance sheet, taking due
account of the effective maturity of the asset base and the amount of maturing debt that will have to be replaced. The ability to
continue to fund ongoing business activities through periods of difficult market conditions is also factored in.

To ensure that a well-balanced and diversified liability structure is preserved, the asset liability role will routinely monitor the
Group’s funding status and report its findings on a monthly basis to the Board of Directors.
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cARTAL MANAGEMENT

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

In managing its capital, AgriBank will consider a variety of requirements and expectations. Sufficient capital must be in place to
support current and projected business activities, according to both AgriBank’s own internal assessment and the requirements of
its regulators, in particular its regulator, the Maltese Financial Services Authority (MFSA).

Capital is also managed in order to achieve sound capital ratios that ensure that Agrisank remains a well capitalised firm in the
banking sector. This will be crucial in retaining clients’ confidence in the Groups financial strength and also supports the Group’s
funding position and favorable borrowing costs in the international financial markets.

The Group aims to maintain sound capital ratios at all times, and it therefore considers not only the current situation but also
projected developments in both its capital base and capital requirements. The main tools by which AgriBank manages the supply
side of its capital ratios will be active management of capital instruments and dividend payments.

Capital adequacy management

Ensuring compliance with minimum regulatory capital requirements and targeted capital ratios is central to capital adequacy
management. In this ongoing process, Agrisank manages towards Tier land Total capital target ratios. In the target setting process
AgriBank takes into account the regulatory minimum capital requirements and regulators’ expectations that the bank holds
additional capital above the minimum and the internal assessment of aggregate risk exposure in terms of Capital-at-risk.

Capital requirements

At 30 June 2015, AgriBank was subject to regulatory guidelines based on the Basel Ill framework established by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision (“~S guidelines / ratios”). The capital it is required to hold is determined by its risk-weighted
assets — its balance sheet off-balance sheet and market risk positions, measured and risk-weighted according to criteria defined by
the MFSA. Under 815 guidelines, a financial institutions eligible capital must be at least 8% of its total risk-weighted assets.

AgriBank measures on- and off-balance sheet claims according to regulatory formulas. Claims are weighted according to type of
counterparty and collateral. The least risky claims, such as claims on OECD governments and claims collateralised by cash, are
weighted at 0%, meaning that no regulatory capital support is required, while the claims deemed most risky, including unsecured
claims on both corporate and private clients, are weighted at 100%, meaning that 8% capital support is required.

Securities not held for trading are treated as claims, based on the net position in the securities of each issuer, including both actual
holdings and exposures from derivative instruments. The Groups investments in entities which are consolidated under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and which are not active in the field of banking and finance (including
consolidated industrial holdings) are treated for regulatory capital purposes as positions in securities not held for trading.

The Group will initially be controlling and reporting as per Basel Ill Standardised approach of allocating capital with the intention to
develop its processes and information systems to arrive at the Internal Rating / Advanced approach in a reasonable time span
necessary.

Other assets, most notably property and equipment, and intangibles are not subject to credit or market risk, but they represent a
risk to the Group in respect of their potential for write down and impairment and therefore require capital underpinning in
accordance with regulatory formulas.

Risk-weighted assets (815)

On 30 June 2015, total risk-weighted assets for the Group were GBP 18,835,788 (2014: GBP 21,153,640), and for the Bank were
GBP 11,590,852 (2014: GBP 7,632,374).
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Eligible capital

The capital available to support risk-weighted assets—eligible capital — consists of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital. To determine eligible
Tier 1 and total capital, adjustments have to be made to shareholders’ equity as defined under IFRS, most notably by deducting
intangible assets and investments in unconsolidated entities engaged in banking and finance activities.

Eligible capital is the same under 515 guidelines and MFSA regulations.

Tier 1 capital! AgriBank shares

The majority of Tier 1 capital comprises share capital injected at inception of the Bank as reduced by the accumulated loss for the
year attributable to the Bank’s shareholders. As of 30 June 2015, total IFRS equity attributable to the Group’s shareholders
amounted to GBP 5,316,988 (2014: GBP 5,901,569), while that attributable to the Bank’s shareholders amounted to GBP 5,408,565
(2014: GBP 5,731,316), which serves as the basis for determining the regulatory eligible Tier 1 capital.

Hybrid Tier 1 capital

Hybrid Tier 1 instruments are perpetual instruments that can only be redeemed if they are called by the issuer. The payment of
interest is subject to compliance with minimum capital ratios and any payment missed is non-cumulative. As at 30 June 2015, there
were no hybrid Tier 1 instruments issued by the Bank.

On 30 June 2015, BIS Tier 1 capital for the Group was GBP 5,120,293 (2014: GSP 5,311,565) and for the Bank was GBP 4,796,093
(2014: GSP 5,141,312) reflecting primarily the capital of the Bank at inception and the net setup costs as mitigated by the results of
the second year’s revenue operations of the Group.

Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital consists mainly of subordinated long-term debt that ranks senior to both Agrisank shares and hybrid Tier 1
instruments but is subordinated with respect to all senior obligations of AgriBank. As at 30 June 2015, there were no Tier 2
instruments issued by the Bank.

Capital ratios

The BlS ratios compare the amount of eligible capital (in total and Tier 1) with the total of risk-weighted assets.

Future capital ratios will depend on, among other factors, developments in financial markets and their impact on profit and loss,
valuations and capital requirements for market risk; the development of the credit quality of the Groups obligors and
counterparties; future issuances of capital instruments; capital requirements for operational risk; and future changes in the
regulatory frameworks.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

REMUNERATION POLICY

During the current period, the Group has been developing its Remuneration Policy which is based on the following principles:

- Clarity and transparency for all stakeholders;

- Adherence to the Group’s long term objectives with reference to the relevant level of risk involved in attaining these
goals;

- Maintaining a reasonable proportion between the fixed and variable part of remuneration package;

- The review of the annual staff remuneration considers the Group’s results, performance, as well as local markets trends
in the financial sector and individual performance in view of the risk level involved in the long term; and

- Market data is considered and target remuneration brackets per job position are set in view of level of expertise, years in
the position, attraction of talent and high performers

The remuneration paid during the current period to the executive directors, whose actions have a material impact on the risk
profile of AgriBank, was GBP 151,652 (2014: GBP 172,882). Directors’ fees paid to non-executive directors during the period were
GBP 90,600 (2014: GBP 87,899).
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INTERNAL AUDIT

During the financial year ended 30 June 2015, the Bank has started to implement an internal audit programme which had been
outsourced to an independent professional services firm, who commenced their internal audit work just after year end. The
internal audit will be supporting and reporting to the Bank’s Audit Committee by independently assessing the effectiveness of the
Bank’s system of internal controls and compliance of the Group with statutory, legal and regulatory requirements. The Audit
Committee will be approving the internal auditors’ audit programmes and efforts, analyse and review the audit findings and follow
up on implementation of changes and improvements in controls and procedures as a result of the internal auditors’ findings.
Accordingly, all key issues raised by internal audit will be communicated through the Audit Committee to the management
responsible from the risk and control area.

Internal audit will have unrestricted access to all accounts, books and records and will be provided with all information and data
needed to fulfill its duties. Coordination and close cooperation with the external auditors will be important to enhance the
efficiency of internal audit’s work.

No internal audit reports have been approved up till the end of year date.
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REMUNERAI1ON P0UCY

SHARES AND CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS

Shares

AgriBank shares and Tier 1 capital

The majority of Tier 1 capital comprises ordinary share capital attributed to AgriBank shareholders. As at 30 June 2015, total equity
as reported in the financial statements attributable to the Group amounted to GBP 5,316,988 (2014: GBP 5,901,569), while for
AgriBank it amounted to GBP 5,408,665 (2014: GBP 5,731,316). This serves as the basis for determining the regulatory eligible Tier
1 capital, and was represented by a total of 6,500,000 (2014: 6,500,000) issued AgriBank shares and an accumulated loss of GBP
1,194,161 (2014: GBP 598,431 for the Group, and GaP 1,102,484 (2014: GaP 768,684) for the Bank. Each outstanding share has a
par value of GBP 1 and entitles the holder to one vote at the shareholders meeting and to receive a proportionate share of the
dividend that is distributed. There are no preferential rights for individual shareholders and no other classes of shares are issued by
the Bank directly.

It was during the previous period that all the 6,500,000 Ordinary Shares were issued at GBP1 each.

Capital Instruments

Hybrid Tier 1 capital

Hybrid Tier 1 instruments are perpetual instruments which can only be redeemed if they are called by the issuer, If such a call is not
exercised at the respective call date, the terms might include a change from fixed to floating coupon payments and, in the case of
innovative instruments only, a limited step-up of the interest rate. Non-innovative instruments do not have a step-up of the
interest rate and are therefore viewed as having a higher equity characteristic for regulatory capital purposes. The instruments are
issued either through trusts or subsidiaries of Agriaank and rank senior to AgriBank shares in dissolution. Payments under the
instruments are subject to the adherence to minimal capital ratios by AgriBank. Any payment missed is non-cumulative.

As at 30 June 2015, Agrisank had not issued any hybrid instruments.

Tier 2 capital

Up till 30 June 2015, Agrisank had not issued any Tier 2 instruments-

Distributions to shareholders

From its inception up till year end, AgriBank never paid any dividend to shareholders registered as of the date of the AGM (the
record date) due to accumulated losses registered.

The level of the dividend is dependent on Agriaank’s targeted capital ratios and the cash flow generation of the Group.

The decision on dividend payments falls under the AGM’s authority and is subject to shareholder approval.

Total distributions in 2015

For the period ended 30 June 2015, the Board of Directors proposes that no dividend shall be paid to the shareholders he. the
parent company of the Bank.

Cash dividend payments are deducted from the Bank’s net profits and retained earnings, which are some of the major components
of the Bank’s core (Tier 1) capital. In contrast, by issuing new shares in lieu of a dividend cash payment, the level of AgriBank’s (Tier
1) capital base is maintained.
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SHARE REGISTER INFORMATION

Directors’ direct or indirect interest in the share capital of the company as at 30 June 2015 and 2014:

None

As at 30 June 2015 and 2014 the Bank’s issued share capital was held by 2 shareholders. The share capital of the Bank consists of
one class of ordinary shares with equal voting rights.

Shareholders holding 5% or more of the equity capital as at 30 June 2015 and 2014

shareholder Number of shares held % of shares

AgriHoldings Limited 6,499,999 99.99

There were no further changes in shareholders’ holding of 5% or more of the equity share capital until is september 2015, the
date these financial statements were approved.

Company Secretary

Dr. Isabella Sant

Registered Address

Level 1, SkyParks Business Centre
Malta International Airport
Luqa LQA 4000, Malta

Tel +356 2092 6000
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD
ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Note

The Group The Bank

Year from Period from Year from Year from
1JuI2014 30ct2013 1JuI2014 1JuI2013

to to to to
30 Jun 2015 30 Jun 2014 30 Jun 2015 30 Jun 2014

GBP GBP GBP GBP

Revenue
Interest income 2 2,015,682 1,203,388 440,465 649,657
Interest expense 3 (827,544) (240,969) (167,229) (47,811)

Net interest income 1,188,138 962,419 273,236 601,846

Fee and Commission income 24,753 4,220 933,261 14,477
Fee and Commission expense (230,941) (222,977) (230,941) (187,980)

Netfee and commission expense 4 (206,188) (218,757) 702,320 (173,503)

Net operating income 981,950 743,662 975,556 428,343

Other income 5 - 261,931

Employee compensation and benefits 6 482,469 395,590 482,469 395,590
General administrative expenses 752,093 699,559 745,700 646,169
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 61,166 60,397 61,166 60,397
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 15 37,604 36,746 37,604 36,746
Net impairment losses 7 401,483 - 401,483 -

Total expense 1,734,815 1,192,292 1,728,422 1,138,902

Loss before tax 8 (752,865) (448,630) (490,935) (710,559)

Income tax credit 9 168,284 155,232 168,284 246,908

Loss for the year/period total
comprehensive loss for the year/period (584,581) (293,398) (322,651) (463,651)
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Assets

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2015

Equity
Share capital
General banking risk reserve
Accumulated losses
Total equity

Thecroup TheBank

Total liabilities and equity 24,186,220 23,223,682 16,310,072 7,972,575

Memorandum Items
Total commitments 26 88,317 88,317

The official middle rate of exchange issued by the European Central Bank between GBP Ster ing and Euro as at 30 June 2015 was
EUR:GBP 0.7119 (2014: EUR:GBP 0.8015). The notes on pages 28 to 58 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 24 to 52 were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 September 2015 and signed on its
behalf by:

Mr Roderick Psaila
Chairman Director and CEO

Cash and cash equivalents
Finance lease receivable

Loans to customers
Investment in subsidiary
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax
Assets held for realisation
Other assets
Prepayments and accrued income

Total assets

Liabilities
Amounts owed to banks
Amounts owed to customers
Debt securities in issue
Other liabilities
Accruals
Current tax

Total liabilities

10
11

12
13
14
15
16
32
17
18

19
20
21
22
23

2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

7,029,012 2,461,720 6,459,903 323,005

13,436,398 17,543,107 5,194,364 4,308,309
1,810,507 1,641,563 1,039,247 364,665

- 1,857,159 1,857,159
20,367 177,101 20,367 177,101

158,399 191,714 158,399 191,714
581,188 412,903 581,188 412,903
205,000 - 205,000 -

688,938 594,244 642,177 174,187
256,411 201,330 152,268 163,532

24,186,220 23,223,682 16,310,072 7,972,575

8,525,529 15,000,000 - -

8,941,734 884,000 8,941,734 884,000
1,060,000 860,000 1,060,000 860,000

51,104 223,185 718,017 264,468
199,189 263,251 181,656 232,791
91,676 91,676 -

18,869,232 17,322,113 10,901,407 2,241,259

6,500,000 6,500,000 6,500,000 6,500,000
11,149 11,149 -

(1,194,161) (598,431) (1,102,484) (768,684)
5,316,988 5,901,569 5,408,665 5,731,316



STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

General
Accumulated banking Fisk

The Group Share capital losses reserve Total

GBP GBP GBP GBP

At 3 october 2013 6,500,000 (305,033) - 6,194,967

Loss for the period/total comprehensive loss
for the period

- (293,398) - (293,398)

At 1 July 2014 6,500,000 (598,431) - 5,901,569

Transfer to general banking risk reserve (11,149) 11,149 -

Loss for the year/total comprehensive loss [or
the year - (584,581) - (584,581)

At 30 June 2015 6,500,000 (1,194,161) 11,149 5,316,988

General
banking

Share Accumulated risk
The Bank capital losses reserve Total

GBP GBP GBP GBP

At 1 July 2013 6,500,000 (305,033) - 6,194,967

Loss for the year/total comprehensive loss for
the period

- (463,651) - (463,651)

At 1 July 2014 6,500,000 (768,684) - 5,731,316

Transfer to general banking risk reserve - (11,149) 11,149 -

Loss for the year/total comprehensive loss for
the year - (322,651) - (322,651)

At 30 June 2015 6,500,000 (1,102,484) 11,149 5,408,665
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Note

The Group The Bank

Year from 1 Period from Year from Year from
jul2014 30ct2013 1Jul2014 1ju12013

to to to to
30jun2015 30jun2014 30Jun2015 30jun2014

GBP GBP GBP GBP

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest and commission received 2,861,319 265,427 1,352,447 663,798

Interest and commission paid (1,592,019) (184,663) (79,829) (205,374)

Cash payments to employees and suppliers (1,850,622) (451,466) (1,845,152) (816,999)

Cash flows used in operating activities
before changes in operating assets and
liabilities (581,322) (370,702) (572,534) (358,575)

Increasein finance lease receivable 3,831,026 (12,993,077) (1,724,001) 1,364,615

Increase in assets for realisation (205,000) - (205,000) -

Increase in amounts owed to banks and to
Customers 1,757,991 15,530,000 8,257,734 780,000

Net cash generated from operating
activities 4,802,695 2,166,221 5,756,199 1,786,040

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property plant and equipment (55,218) (30,464) (4,289) (30,464)
Purchase of intangible assets 1,557 (37,108) (1,557) (37,108)
Investment in subsidiary - - - (1,857,159)

Net cash used in investing activities (53,661) (67,572) (5,846) (1,924,731)

Cash flows from financing activities

Amount received from subsidiary company - 568,287 98,626

Amount advanced to parent company (181,742) (2,898) (181,742) (2,898)

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities (181,742) (2,898) 386,545 95,728

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 4,567,292 2,095,751 6,136,898 (42,964)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year/period 2,461,720 365,969 323,005 365,969

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year/period 10 7,029,012 2,461,720 6,459,903 323,005
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Significant accounting policies

a. Basis ofpreparation

The financial statements of AgriBank plc (‘the Bank’) and its subsidiaries (together ‘the Group) have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU IFRS). These financial statements have also
been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Banking Act, 1994 (Cap. 371) and the Companies Act, 1995 (Cap. 386). The
financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

The separate and consolidated financial statements have also been prepared and presented in accordance with the provisions of
the Banking Act, 1994 and the Companies Act, 1995 enacted in Malta.

The Group financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Bank audits subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are those entities
that are controlled by the Bank. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Bank has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity. The
results of subsidiaries are included in the Group financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. lntragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Non-controlling interests
that represent ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at their present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. After initial recognition, non-controlling interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.

International Financial Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective
A number of new International Financial Reporting Standards and amendments and revisions thereto were in issue but not yet
effective during the financial year under review. These include the following:
The final version of IFRS 9 brings together the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting phases of the
IASBs project to replace lAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. The Standard supersedes all previous
versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 introduces a logical approach for the classification of financial assets, which is driven by cash flow
characteristics and the business model in which an asset is held. The new model also results in a single, forward-looking ‘expected
loss’ impairment model that will require more timely recognition of expected credit losses. This standard is applicable for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. This standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

On 28 May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 entitled Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier application being permitted. IFRS 15 is the result of a convergence
project between the IASB and the FASB. IFRS 15 specifies how and when an ~RS reporter will recognise revenue as well as requiring
such entities to provide users of financial statements with more informative, relevant disclosures. The standard supersedes lAS 18
Revenue, lAS 11 Construction Contracts and a number of revenue-related interpretations. This Standard applies to nearly all
contracts with customers with the main exceptions being leases, financial instruments and insurance contracts. This Standard has
not been endorsed by the EU at the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

On 12 August 2014, the ASB issued Amendments to lAS 27 entitled Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements. These
Amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
in their separate financial statements. These Amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
These Amendments have not been endorsed by the EU at the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

On 25 September 2014, the IASB issued Amendments to lAS 19 as part of the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle. The
Amendments clarify that the high quality corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-employment benefits should
be issued in the same currency as the benefits to be paid. These Amendments would result in the depth of the market for high
quality corporate bonds being assessed at currency level. The Amendments apply from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the financial statements in which the Amendments are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising should be
recognised in retained earnings at the beginning of that period. The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. These Amendments have not been endorsed by the EU at the date of authorisation of these financial
statements.
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The amendment to lAS 24 Related Parties as part of the ‘Annual Improvements to IFRS’s 2010-2012 cycle’ was issued in December
2013. It clarified that an entity providing key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity. This amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

The directors are assessing the impact that the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards that were in issue at the
date of authorisation of these financial statements, but not yet effective, will have on the financial statements of the Group and the
Bank in the period of initial application.

b. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Sterling, which currency represents the functional currency of the Group and the Bank.

c. Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements, transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are translated at
the exchange rates ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to GaP at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Gains and losses arising from such translation are dealt with
in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated to
GBP at the exchange rate prevailing on the date the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are measured in terms of historical cost are not retranslated.

d. Loans and receivables

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following category: loans and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market other than those that are held for trading or are designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss or
as available-for-sale financial assets or those for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment other
than because of credit deterioration. These comprise cash and cash equivalents and finance lease receivable.

Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, if any, that are directly attributable to their
acquisition, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognised or impaired and through the aniortisation
process using the effective interest rate.

Impairment
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Financial assets carried at arnortised cost.
There.are two components to the Group’s impairment allowances on financial assets carried at amortised cost: specific_and
collective allowances. The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. Specific
impairment allowances are determined on a case-by-case basis after taking into account the cash-generating potential and the
financial state of the borrower and the realisable value of collateral held against borrowings. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

For loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases, and the decrease Can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through an allowance
account, but so that the reversal does not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or
loss.

e. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into,
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to their issue. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities at fairvalue through profit or loss include financial liabilities classified as held for trading and those designated at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. During the current period, the Group did not designate any financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. Derivatives are categorised as held for trading, unless they are
designated and effective hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method include amounts owed to customers
and debt securities in issue.

The gain or loss on financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss. For financial
liabilities carried at amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss when the financial liability is derecognised and
through the amortisation process whereby any difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the settlement or
redemption is recognised over the term of the financial liability.

Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

f. Recognition, de-recagnitian and offsetting offinancial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

All loans and receivables are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers.

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the Group
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished.
This occurs when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statements of financial position when the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

g. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are classified into the following classes — fixtures and fittings, furniture, IT infrastructure and
equipment and office equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Expenditure on repairs and maintenance of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an expense when incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition represent the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount, and are included in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Tangible assets are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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Ii. Intangible assets

Intangible assets Comprise trademarks, computer software, Computer systems and website costs. In determining the classification
of an asset that incorporates both intangible and tangible elements, judgment is used in assessing which element is more
significant. Computer software which is an integral part of the related hardware is classified as property, plant and equipment and
accounted for in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy on property, plant and equipment. Where the software is not an
integral part of the related hardware, this is classified as an intangible asset.

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the Bank and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition represent the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount, and
are included in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, it is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

i. Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and amortisation on intangible assets commence when these assets are available
for use and are charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost or revalued amount of assets, other than land, less any estimated
residual value, over their estimated useful life, using the straight line method, on the following bases:

Property, plant and equipment
Fixtures and fittings 10% perannum

Furniture 20% perannum

IT infrastructure and equipment 20% per annum

Office equipment 20% perannum

Intangible assets
Trademark 10% perannum

Computer software 33% per annum

Computer systems 20% perannum

Website costs 33% perannum

The depreciation or amortisation method applied, the residual value and the useful life are reviewed at each reporting date.

j. Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At each reporting date the Group reviews the carrying amount of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount, as calculated. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
loss shall be treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent that it does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that
asset.

An impairment loss recognised in a prior year is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that it does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Impairment reversals are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
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the impairment reversal is recognised directly in equity, unless an impairment loss on the same asset was previously recognised in
profit or loss.

k. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

1. Taxotion

Current and deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case it is also dealt with in equity.

Current tax is based on the taxable result for the period. The taxable result for the period differs from the result as reported in the
statements of comprehensive income because it excludes items which are non-assessable or disallowed and it further excludes
items that are taxable or deductible in other periods, It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is determined under the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences between the carrying
amount of an asset or liability in the statements of financial position and its tax base. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

m. Revenue recognition

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to that instrument’s net carrying amount. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses. The calculation includes
payments and receipts that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other discounts or premiums.

Fees and commissions that are earned on the execution of a significant transaction are recognised as revenue when the significant
transaction has been completed. Fees and commissions that are earned as services are provided to the client are recognised as
revenue as the services are provided. Where fees are charged to cover the cost of a continuing service, these are recognised on an
appropriate basis over the relevant period.

n. Employee benefits

The Bank contributes towards the state pension in accordance with local legislation. The costs of retirement benefits are charged to
profit or loss as they accrue.

o. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand or with a contractual period to maturity of
less than 90 days; advances to banks repayable within 90 days from the date of the advance and balances with the Central Bank of
Malta. Amounts owed to banks that are repayable on demand or with a contractual period to maturity of less than 90 days and
which form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the cash flow statements.

p. Fin once leases
Assets leased to customers under agreements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards asociated with owenrship,
other than legal title, are classified as finance leases. Finance charges receivable are recognised in the statements of financial
position and income is recognised over the period of the lease so as to give a constant rate of return on the net cash investment in
the lease, taking into account all receipts associated with the lease.
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q. Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of an entity (a) that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, (b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and Cc) for which discrete financial information is
available.

The Board has considered the requirements of IFRS S Operating Segments. The shares of the Bank are not listed on a Stock
Exchange. As a result the Bank is outside the scope of IFRS S. Therefore, no reconciliation is required between the measure of gains
or losses used by the Board to measure the performance of the Board and that contained in these financial statements.

r. Judgments in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results could differ from such estimates.

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment on an ongoing basis as relevant generic data is observed concerning risks
associated with groups of loans with similar risk characteristics. As a result, the Group makes judgments as to whether there is any
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans, before
the decrease is actually identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience. The above review has resulted in a specific impairment allowance for the year ended 30 june 2015 of
GBP2S2,317 (2014: GBP Nil) on the Group’s finance lease receivable and loans to customers.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made no other judgements which can significantly
affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements. At the reporting date, there were no key assumptions concerning the
future, or any other key sources of estimation uncertainty, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

2. Interest income

The Group The Bank

Year from Period from Year from Year from
1iul2014 30ct2013 1jul2014 1Jul2013

to to to to
30Jun2015 30Jun2014 30jun2015 30Jun2014

GBP GBP GBP GBP

On cash and cash equivalents 55 151 55 151
Finance lease interest income 1,820,689 1,029,793 383,548 638,046
Loan interest income 194,938 173,444 56,862 11,460
Interest Income 2,015,682 1,203,388 440,465 649,657

During the year, GBP 5,632 (2014: GBP 163,656) of the Group’s interest income and GBP 5,632 (2014: GBP 7,255) of the Bank’s
interest income consisted of income from financial leases to related parties.

Interest income recognised during the year on impaired financial assets was GBP Nil (2014: GBP Nil).
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3. Interest expense
The Group The Bank

Yearfrom Period from Yearfrom Yearfrom
1Ju12014 3Oct2Ol3to 1Ju12014 to 1Ju12013

to to
30Jun2015 30Jun2014 30Jun2015 30iun2014

GBP GBP GBP GBP

On amounts owed to banks 610,452 193,158 - -

On amounts owed to Customers 126,644 30,371 126,644 30,371
On debt securities in issue 90,448 17,440 40,585 17,440

Interest expense 827,544 240,969 167,229 47,811

4. Net fee and Commission income

The Group The Bank

Year from Year from Year from Year from
1Ju12014 1Jul2013

lJul2Ol3to lJul2Ol4to
to to

30jun2015 30Jun2014 30Jun2015 30Jun2014

GBP GBP GBP GBP

Arrangement fees on finance leases and loans 4220 11,766 4477
24,753 , 1

Management Administration fees - - 921,495

Fee and commission income 933,261
24,753 4,220 14,477

Origination fees on finance leases and loans (220,032) (152,322) (220,032) (152,320)
Other fees (10,909) (70,655) (10,909) (35,660)

Fee and commission expense (230,941) (222,977) (230,941) (187,980)

Net Fee and commission expense 206,188 (218,757) 702,320 (173,503)

Included in the origination fees on finance leases and loans are GBP 120,000- (2014: GBP 133,905) of fees that were

paid to related parties.

5. Other income

Other income for the bank included the gross dividend amount in total GBP261,931.
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6. Employee compensation and benefits

6.1. Directors’ compensation
The Group The Bank

Year from Period from Year from Year from
lJul2Ol4 30ct2013 1Jul2014 1Jul2013

30Jun20:: 30Jun20:; 30jun to

GBP GBP GBP GBP

Directors’ fees 90,600 87,899 90,600 87,899
Directors’ salaries 151,652 172,882 151,652 172,882
Total remuneration for directors 242,252 260,781 242,252 260,781

6.2. Personnel expenses including directors incurred during the period are analysed as follows:

The Group The Bank
Yearfrom Period from Yearfrom Yearfrom
1Jul2014 30ct2013 1JuI2D14 lJul2Ol3

to to to to
30Jun2015 30Jun2014 3OJun2QlS 30Jun2014

GBP GBP GBP GBP

Wages and salaries 449,590 ~ 449,590 373,453

Social security costs 14,554 16,267 14,554 16,267

other staff costs 18,325 5,870 18,325 5,870

482,469 395,590 482,469 395,590

6.3.The average number of employees employed during the period excluding non-executive directors was as follows:

2015 2014

Number Number

Senior managerial 2 2
Managerial 2 2

Executives 2 2

Clerical 4 3

Total 10 9
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7. Net impairment losses

The Group The Bank

Year from
Year from Peno rom Year from 1 Jul 2014
1 Jul 2014 3 Oct 2014 1 Jul 2014 to

to to to
30J 2015 3OJun 20153OJun 2015 Un 3OJun 2015

GOP GOP GOP GOP

Write downs:
Finance lease receivables
-specific allowances 282,317 - 282,317 -

-collective allowances 25,665 - 25,665 -

-bad debts 93,501 93,501
Net impairment losses 401,483 - 401,483

8. Loss before tax

TheGroup Theoank

Year from Year from Year from Year from
lJul2Ol4to lJul2Ol3to lJul2Ol4to lJul20l3to
3OJun2OlS 30Jun2014 3OJun2OlS 30Jun2014

GOP GBP GOP GBP

Loss before tax is stated after charging:

Total remuneration payable to the Bank’s auditors for:
-the audit of financial statements 14,001 16,083 11,352 11,909
-other services 10,271 872 7,092 872

24,272 16,955 18,444 12,781

9. Income tax credit

The Group The Bank

Year from Period from Year from year from
1Jul2014 30ct2013 lJul2Ol4 1Jul2013

to to to to
30Jun2015 30Jun2014 30Jun2015 30Jun2014

GOP GOP GOP GOP

Current tax credit / (charge) - (91,698) - (22)
Deferred tax credit 168,284 246,930 168,284 246,930

168,284 155,232 168,284 246,908
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The credit for income tax is based on the taxable loss for the period at a rate of 35%.

The income tax credit for the period and tax applying the statutory domestic income tax rate are reconciled as follows:

The Group The Bank

Year from Period from Year from Period from
1 Jul 2014 3 Oct 2013 1 Jul 2014 26 Jul 2012

to to to to
30iun2015 30Jun2014 3OJun2OlS 3OJun2Ol4

GBP GBP GBP GBP

Loss before tax 752,865 448,630 490,935 710,559

Tax at the applicable rate of 35% 263,503 157,021 171,827 248,696

Tax effect ofpermanent differences:
Non-allowable expenses (1,515) (1,767) (1,515) (1,766)
Tax effect due to prior year overprovisioning (2,028) - (2,028) -

Refund tax (91,676) - - -

Tax at source (22) - (22)
Total income tax credit 168,284 155,232 168,284 246,908

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash in
hand and deposits held at call with banks.

TheGroup TheBank

2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Repayable on call and at short notice 7,028,083 2,461,638 6,458,974 322,923
Cash in hand 929 82 929 82

7,029,012 2,461,720 6,459,903 323,005

Part of the cash and cash equivalent earns interest at floating rates based on bank deposit rates.

11. Finance lease receivables

Finance lease receivables comprises receivables in respect of asset financing provided to farmers in the United Kingdom, to finance
acquisition of various agriculture-related equipment, vehicles and machinery. The financing arrangements are in the form of
finance lease and hire purchase agreements. The main difference between the two types of financing is that under a finance lease,
the lessee does not acquire the asset nor does he have an option to acquire the asset, and at the end of the lease, the asset is
either sold to a third party or the lessee can continue the lease for a secondary period at a rent that is substantially lower than
market rent. Under hire purchase financing, the lessee has the option to acquire the underlying asset for a nominal fee, at a price
that is expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable.

Under both types of financing arrangements, the lease term is for the most of the economic useful life of the asset and the present
value of the minimum lease payments usually exceeds the fair value of the underlying asset. In the case of early settlements, the
finance income is still due from the lessee, net of a rebate of 2% of the outstanding capital and finance income value.
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TheGroup TheBank
2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Gross investment in finance lease receivable 16,348,860 21,446,605 6,731,744 5,224,600
Unearned future income on:

Finance lease arrangements (1,503,096) (2,486,948) (686,738) (520,994)
Hire purchase arrangements (1,127,049) (1,416,550) (568,325) (395,297)

Less specific allowances for impairment (282,317) - (282,317) -

Net investment in finance leases 13,436,398 17,543,107 5,194,364 4,308,309

Net investment in finance leases comprises:

The Group

Not more Between 1
Lhanlyear andsyears Total

GBP GBP GBP

Finance lease arrangements 2,527,437 4,318,642 6,846,079
Hire purchase arrangements 2,331,410 4,258,909 6,590,319

4,858,847 8,577,551 13,436,398

At 30 June 2015, GBP nil of the Group’s finance lease receivables were due from related parties, (2014: GBP 1,297,118). At 30 June
2015, GBP 35,144 of the hire purchase receivable was due from related parties, yielding 12.39% and is repayable by 3 years (2014:
GBP 29,066).

The Bank

Not more Between 1
than 1 year and 5 years Total

GBP GBP GBP

Finance lease arrangements 597,902 1,655,079 2,252,981
Hire purchase arrangements 911,716 2,029,667 2,941,383

1,509,618 3,684,746 5,194,364

At 30 June 2015, GBP Nil of the Bank’s finance lease receivables were due from related parties (2014: GBP 23,133). At 30 June
2015, GBP 35,144 of the hire purchase receivable was due from related parties, yielding 12.39% and is repayable by 3 years (2014:
GBP 29,066).
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The Group

Not more Between 1
than 1 year and 5 years Total

GBP GOP GOP

Fina nce lease arrangements 3,227,092 5,285,987 8,513,079
Hire purchase arrangements 2,859,226 4,976,555 7,835,781

6,086,318 10,262,542 16,348,860
The Bank

Not more Between 1
than 1 year and 5 years Total

GOP GOP GOP

Finance lease arrangements 817,282 2,286,341 3,103,623
Hire purchase arrangements 1,158,793 2,469,328 3,628,121

1,976,075 4,755,669 6,731,744

The underlying assets have no unguaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of the Bank or Group, nor has any contingent
rent been included as part of income in the current period.

Finance lease receivables are subject to net impairment losses as per note 7.

12. Loans to customers

The Group The Bank

2015 2014 2015 2014

GBP GOP GOP GBP

Term loans and advances 1,810,507 1,641,563 1,039,247 364,665

1,810,507 1,641,563 1,039,247 364,665
Less impairment losses - - -

Net loans and advances at amortised cost 1,810,507 1,641,563 1,039,247 364,665

13. Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary consists of a 1,857,159 shares in AgriFunding 13-1 Ltd of GBP1 each representing 100%. The subisidiary
prepares its financial statements to the same date, 30 june.
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14. Intangible assets

The Group

Computer Computer Website
Trademark Software Systems Costs Total

SEP SEP SEP SEP SEP

Cost
At3 october2013 880 17,509 191,114 38,006 247,509
Acquisitions - 3,050 5,420 5,078 13,548
At 30 June 2014 880 20,559 196,534 43,084 261,057
Acquisitions - 1,851 - 479 2,330
Write-offs - - (188,890) - (188,890)
At 30 June 2015 880 22,410 7,644 43,563 74,497

Accumulated amortisation
At 3 October 2013 2,408 15,926 5,226 23,560
Charge for the period 88 6,784 39,307 14,218 60,397
At 30 June 2014 88 9,192 55,233 19,444 83,957
Write-offs - (90,992) - (90,992)
Charge for the year 88 7,395 39,308 14,375 61,166
At 30 June 2015 176 16,587 3,548 33,819 54,131

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2014 792 11,367 141,301 23,640 177,101

At 30 June 2015 704 5,823 4,096 9,744 20,367

The Bank

Computer Computer Website
Trademark Software Systems Costs Total

SEP SEP SEP SEP SEP

Cost
At 3 October 2013 880 17,509 191,114 38,006 247,509
Acquisitions - 3,050 5,420 5,078 13,548
At 30 June 2014 880 20,559 196,534 43,084 261,057
Acquisitions - 1,851 - 479 2,330
Write-offs - - (188,890) - (188,890)
At 30 June 2015 880 22,410 7,644 43,563 74,497

Accumulated amortisation
At 3 October 2013 - 2,408 15,926 5,226 23,560
Charge for the period 88 6,784 39,307 14,218 60,397
At 30 June 2014 88 9,192 55,233 19,444 83,957
Write-offs - - (90,992) - (90,992)
Charge for the year 88 7,395 39,308 14,375 61,166
At 30 June 2015 176 16,587 3,548 33,819 54,131

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2014 792 11,367 141,301 23,640 177,101

At 3QJune 2015 704 5,823 4,096 9,744 20,367
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15. Property, plant and equipment

The Group
IT

Fixtures & infrastructure Office
Fittings Furniture & equipment Equipment Total

GOP GOP GOP GOP GOP

Cost
At 1 July 2013 112,338 32,846 76,835 4,343 226,361
Additions 5,488 4,363 2,787 3,645 16,282
At 1 July 2014 117,825 37,209 79,621 7,988 242,643
Additions - 4,029 260 4,289
At 30June 2015 117,825 37,209 83,650 8,248 246,932

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2013 4,681 2,737 6,403 362 14,183
Charge for the period 11,783 7,442 15,924 1,597 36,746
At 30 June 2014 16,464 10,179 22,327 1,959 50,929
Charge for the year 11,783 7,442 16,730 1,650 37,604
At 3OJune 2015 28,247 17,621 39,057 3,609 88,534

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2014 109,362 27,030 57,294 6,028 191,714

At 30 June 2015 89,578 19,588 44,593 4,639 158,399

The Bank
IT

Fixtures & infrastructure Office
Fittings Furniture & equipment Equipment Total

GOP GOP GOP GBP GBP

Cost
At iJuly 2013 112,338 32,846 76,835 4,343 226,361
Additions 5,488 4,363 2,787 3,645 16,282
At lJuly 2014 117,825 37,209 79,621 7,988 242,643
Additions - 4,029 260 4,289
At 30 June 2015 117,825 37,209 83,650 8,248 246,932

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2013 4,681 2,737 6,403 362 14,183
Charge for the period 11,783 7,442 15,924 1,597 36,746
At 30 June 2014 16,464 10,179 22,327 1,959 50,929
Charge for the year 11,783 7,442 16,730 1,650 37,604
At 30 June 2015 28,247 17,621 39,057 3,609 88,534

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2014 101,362 27,030 57294 6,028 191,714

At 30 June 2015 89,578 19,588 44,593 4,639 158,399
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16. Deferred tax

Recognised deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset is attributable to the following temporary differences:

TheGroup TheBank
2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Tax value of losses and capital allowances carry-forwards 581,188 412,903 581,188 412,903

Deferred tax asset as at 30 June 2015
581,188 412,903 581,188 412,903

17. Other assets

TheGroup TheBarik
2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Receivables from related parties 250,792 209,352 189,166 50,348
VAT receivables 137,452 133,352 136,748 25,876
Other receivables 169,899 126,540 316,263 97,963
Arrangement Fee 130,795 125,000 - -

688,938 594,244 642,177 174,187

Receivables from related parties consist of GBP 16,989 (Group and Bank) advanced to the parent company, AgriHoldings Limited,
to finance expenses and GBP 85,782 (Group) and GBP 24,156 (Bank) receivable from a related party in relation to finance lease
rentals, being cash transfers in transit at end of the current period. Another receivable from AgriHoldings Limited amounting to
GBP 148,230 for both Group and Bank consist of an unsecured loan, with a fixed interest rate of 3% repayable by fixed semi-annual
installments of GBP13,778 up till the 30 April 2025. The other related parties’ receivables carry no interest, no security and have no
fixed date of repayment, but are expected to be realised within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

18. Prepayments and accrued income

TheGroup The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Prepayments 106,959 139,502 106,959 139,502
Accrued income on finance leases and loans 149,452 61,828 45,309 24,030

256,411 201,330 152,268 163,352

included in accrued income for the year ended 30 June 2015 is a total of GBP Nil (2014- GBP Nil) for the Group and GBP Nil (2014-
GBP Ni) for the Bank accrued on non-performing loans
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19. Amounts owed to banks

The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Term loan 8,525,529 15,000,000

The loan is secured by the Collateral obtained by the subsidiary on the loans sanctioned.

20. Amounts owed to customers

The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014

GBP GBP GBP GBP

2.7% 3 years GBP fixed rate savings 3,758,611 - 3,758,611 -

3.3% 5 years GBP fixed rate savings 4,178,100 - 4,178,100 -

2.00% 1 year EUR fixed rate savings 121,023 - 121,023 -

3.35% 3 year GBP fixed term deposits 559,000 559,000 559,000 559,000
3.50% 4 year GBP fixed term deposits 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000
3.60% 5 year GBP fixed term deposits 245,000 245,000 245,000 245,000

8,941,734 884,000 8,941,734 884,000

The deposits are repayble on maturity, with interest payable semi-annually, annually or upon maturity.

21. Debt securities in issue

The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

3.35% 3 year GBP AgriBank Saver Bonds 430,000 400,000 430,000 400,000
3.50% 4 year GBP AgriBank Saver Bonds 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000
3.60% 5 year GBP AgriBank Saver Bonds 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
5.00% 5 year GBP AgriBank Co-Invest Bonds 520,000 350,000 520,000 350,000

1,060,000 860,000 1,060,000 860,000

The bonds represent transferable senior debt security. The bonds are redeemable at par upon maturity, with interest payable semi
annually, annually or upon maturity. All the bonds in issue are not listed on any stock exchange and are unsecured.
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22. other liabilities

TheGroup TheBank
2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Other Creditors 51,104 178,942 51,104 121,598
VAT payable - 44,244 - 44,244
Amount owed to subsidiary ____________ ____________ 666,913 98,626

51,104 223,186 718,017 264,468

The amount owed to subsidiary is interest free and unsecured. Though the borrowing has no fixed date of repayment, it is expected
to be settled within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

23. Accruals

Thecroup TheBank
2015 2014 2015 2014

GBP GBP GBP GBP

Accrued interest on term deposits and debt securities in issue 147,260 68,097 129,727 37,637
Other accruals 51,929 195,154 51,929 195,154

199,189 263,251 181,656 232,791

24. Share capital

The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Authorised:
49,999,999 ordinary shares at GBP leach 49,999,999 49,999,999 49,999,999 49,999,999
1 ordinary B shares at GBP leach 1 1 1 1

50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000

Issued and paid up:
6,499,999 ordinary A shares at GBP leach 6,499,999 6,499,999 6,499,999 6,499,999
1 ordinary B shares at GBP leach 1 1 1 1

6,500,000 6,500,000 6,500,000 6,500,000

The holders of the ‘A’ and ‘B’ shares rank pan passu in all respects. Holders of ‘B’ shares do not have voting rights nor are they
entitled to dividends.

25. General banking risk reserve

The revised Banking Rule 09 requires banks in Malta to hold additional reserves for general banking risks against non
performing loans. This reserve is required to be funded from planned dividend (retained earnings).

26. Commitments

Commitments consist of further loan payouts to AgriHoldings Ltd of GBP88,3l7 under the conditions mentioned in note 19.
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27. Related party transactions

The directors consider the ultimate controlling parties to be Frank Sekula who indirectly own 100% of the issued share capital of
the company.

During the course of banking operations, the Bank conducted business transactions with its subsidiary, its parent company and
other related parties. Transactions and balances with related parties are disclosed in notes 2,4,5,6,11 and 17.

No expense has been recognised in the current period for bad and doubtful debts in respect of amounts due from related parties
and there are no provisions for doubtful debts in respect of outstanding amounts due from related parties.

28. Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following is a description of the fair value measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities measured on a basis other
than fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:
- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Finance lease receivables and loans to customers

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s and Bank’s carrying amount of finance lease receivables and loans to customers amounted to GBP
15,246,905 (2014: GBP 19,184,670) and GBP 6,233,611 (2014: GBP 4,672,974) respectively. The finance lease receivables and loans
to customers are granted on the basis of a negotated interest amount depending on the category of underlying agricultural assets
being financed. Interest rates in agricultural asset financing are relatively inelastic to market rates . Finance lease receivables and
loans to customers which have been granted at certain interest rates would still be granted at the same interest rates as at end of
financial year. The carrying amounts therefore approximate fair value and are deemed to be a level 2 measurement.

Other financial assets and liabilities

Other financial assets and financial liabilities comprise cash and balances with Banks, accrued income) other receivables, accrued
expenses and other liabilities. As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximated
their fair values due to their short term maturities.

Amounts owed to banks and customers

This category of liabilities is measured at amortised cost and amounts to GBP17,467,264 (2014: GBP 15,884,000) in the Group and
GBP8,941,734 in the Bank (2014: Bank-~ GBP 884,000). Amounts owed to customers are at fixed rates, whereas amounts owed to
banks, GBP 8,525,529 carry rate of interest of a margin plus one month LIBOR. The bank balance which originally amounted to
GBP15,000,000 is currently being repaid and the balance is considered at market rates. During the current year the Bank also issued
GBP7,936,711 of 3 and 5 year fixed rate savings at a coupon rate ranging from 2.7% to 3.3% and GBP121,023 of EUR denominated 1
year fixed rate savings at a coupon of 2%. The remaining amounts of GBPS84,000 due to customers are also at market rates. The
carrying amounts therefore approximate fair value and are deemed to be a level 2 measurement.

Debt securities in issue

Debt securities in issue, like amounts owed to banks and customers) are measured at amortised cost and amount to GBP1,060,000
in Group and Bank (2014: GBP86O,000). GBP 200,000 of the debt securities in issue at year end, were issued during the year. The
prior year debt securities in issue comprised 3 year AgriBank Saver Bonds at a coupon rate of 3.35%. During the current year, the
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Bank issued GBP 30,000 of 3 year AgriBank Saver Bonds at a coupon of 3.35% and GaP 170,000 of 5 year Agriaank Co-Invest Bonds
at a coupon of 5%. The carrying amounts therefore approximate fair value and are deemed to be a level 2 measurement.

29. Risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

- credit risk

- liquidity risk
The Group is also exposed to non-financial risks, namely operational risk.

This note presents information about the Group’s and the Banks exposure to each of the above risks, and the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing the risks.

Risk Management Framework

With the exception of credit risk, the Audit Committee has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk
management framework, It is made up of three non-executive members of the Bank. It assists the Board of Directors in identifying,
measuring monitoring and controlling the Bank’s key risks, It also reviews the current practices employed by the overall risk
management structure within the Group. The Audit Committees responsibilities extend to supervising regulatory capital
management and risk-based performance measurement. This Committee is also responsible for ensuring the Group’s exposures are
in line with the risk appetite approved by the Board of Directors on an annual basis.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s finance lease receivable and cash and cash equivalents.

Credit risk constitutes the Group’s most significant risk and arises mainly from lending acitivities. To identify, measure and manage
its credit risk arising from all these activities, the Group has adequate methodologies, policies, procedures and expertise in place.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties, using lending instruments which let it keep the
ownership of the underlying assets in the lending contracts until expiration of the contracts, and obtaining sufficient collateral
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. In line with the exposure the Group has at the
balance sheet date, the Credit Committee, made up of a mix of executive and non-executive members, monitors large client
exposures and any conditions for the impairment of assets and allowances.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure and is shown gross, without taking into account
any collateral or other credit enhancements, unless these credit enhancements qualify for offset in accordance with lAS 32.

Financial Instruments: Presentation. The maximum exposure at the reporting date was:

The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
GaP GBP GBP GBP

Cash and cash equivalents 7,029,012 2,461,720 6,459,903 323,005
Finance lease receivable 13,744,380 17,543,107 5,502,346 4,308,309
Loans to customers 1,810,507 1,641,563 1,039,247 364,665

22,583,899 21,646,390 13,001,496 4,995,979

The amount of exposure to credit risk of financial assets presented in the table above is equal to their carrying amount recognised
on the balance sheet. The exposures are neither past due nor impaired and are graded as ‘regular’.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. Impaired facilities are
those credit facilities with payments on interest and/or capital overdue by 90 days or where the Group has reasons to doubt the
eventual recoverability of funds. As at 30 June 2015, the Group and the Bank had an amount of GBP 1,315,242 (2014: GBP Nil).
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Allowances for impairment
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment losses carried at amortised cost that represents its estimate of incurred losses
on its loan portfolio. The main Components of this allowance are a specific loss Component that relates to individually significant
exposures, and a collective loan loss allowance established for groups of homogeneous assets in respect of losses, if any, that have
been incurred but have not been identified on facilities that are considered individually insignificant, as well as individually
significant exposures that were subject to individual assessment for impairment but not found to be individually impaired. The
amount for specific impairment allowances was 2015: GBP 282,317 (2014: Nil) and for collective impairment allowances 2015: GBP
25,665 (2014: Nil).

Write-off policy
The Group writes off a loan/security balance and related allowances for impairment losses when it determines that the loan or
security is uncollectible.

This determination is reached after considering information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the borrowers/issuers
financial position such that the borrower/issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be
sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. The amount of writeoffs was GBP 93,501 (2014: Nil).

Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained
In its asset financing lending, for hire purchase and finance leases, the Group owns the underlying assets up till the end of the
financing contracts’ duration. For loans, the Group actively uses collaterals in its credit risk mitigation. The Group policy is to obtain
collateral if and when required prior to the disbursement of approved loans mainly through liens on property and parcels of
agricultural lands.

Estimates of fair value are based on the value of the collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, and generally are not updated
except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired. Collateral is not held over loans and advances to the parent company.

There was no collateral and other security enhancements held against finance lease receivables, as the Group owns the underlying
assets.

Concentration of risks
The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector, geographic location and industry. An analysis of concentrations of
credit risk at the reporting date is shown below:
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TheGroup TheGroup

Cash and Finance Loans to Cash and Finance Loans to
Cash lease customers Cash lease customers

equivalents receivable equivalents receivable
2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
GBP GBP 681’ GBP 681’ 681’

Carrying amount 7,029,012 13,744,380 1,810,507 2,461,720 17,543,107 1,641,563

Concentration by sector
-Corporates - 13,744,380 1,810,507 - 17,543,107 1,641,563
-Banks 7,029,012 - - 2,461,720 - -

7,029,012 13,744,380 1,810,507 2,461,720 17,543,107 1,641,563

Concentration by industry
-Agriculture 13,744,380 1,810,507 - 17,543,107 1,641,563

13,744,380 1,810,507 2,461,720 17,543,107 1,641,563

Concentration by geography
-Malta 393,354 - - 5,777 - -

6,634,562 13,744,380 1,810,507 2,455,943 17,543,107 1,641,563
7,027,916 13,744,380 1,810,507 2,461,720 17,543,107 1,641,563

The Bank The Bank

Cash and Finance Loans to Cash and Finance Loans to
cash lease customers cash lease customers

equivalents receivable equivalents receivable

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
681’ GBP 681’ GBP 681’ 681’

Carrying amount 6,458,808 5,502,346 1,039,247 323,005 4,308,309 364,665

Concentration by sector
-Corporates - 5,502,346 1,039,247 - 4,308,309 364,665
-Banks 6,458,808 - - 323,005 - -

6,458,808 5,502,346 1,039,247 323,005 4,308,309 364,665

Concentration by industry
-Agriculture 5,502,345 1,039,247 - 4,308,309 364,665

5,502,346 1,039,247 323,005 4,308,309 354,665

Concentration by geography
-Malta 393,354 - - 5,794 - -

6,065,454 5,502,346 1,039,247 317,211 4,308,309 364,665
6,458,808 5,502,346 1,039,247 323,005 4,308,309 364,665

The Group assigns limits on the level of credit risk undertaken in relation to any single counterparty or sovereign exposure in
accordance with external ratings based on the three main external credit rating institutions, ECAIs’, namely Fitch, Moody’s and
Standard & Poor’s.
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Changes in Credit ratings are monitored on a daily basis and are subject to frequent review, when Considered necessary. The limits
on the level of credit risk are reviewed consistently and approved by the SoD at regular intervals. Actual exposures are monitored
against limits on an ongoing basis. The Group enters into security transactions only with such authorised counterparties and it
invests only in securities or paper with credit quality that falls within specific parameters stated in the treasury management policy.

Maximum exposure
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, represents the maximum exposure to credit risk
without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.

Loan commitments
The maximum exposure to credit risk arising on loan commitments and other credit related commitments that are irrevocable over
the life of the respective facilities is the full amount of the committed facilities.
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Credit quality
Credit ratings of the financia institutions with which the Group places cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Thecroup Thesank

2015 2014 2015 2014

GBP GBP GBP GBP
Fitch ratings
- A 6,065,453 2,455,926 6,065,453 317,211
- BBB+ 393,354 5,794 393,354 5,794

6,458,807 2,461,720 6,458,807 323,005

Moody’s ratings
- Al 6,065,453 317,139 6,065,453 317,211
- Baa2 569,109 2,138,787 -

- Not rated 393,354 5,794 393,354 5,794

7,027,916 2,461,720 6,458,807 323,005

Standard & Poor’s ratings
- A 6,065,453 317,139 6,065,453 317,211
-BBB 569,109 2,138,787 569,109 -

Not rated 393,354 5,794 393,354 5,794
7,027,916 2,461,720 7,027,916 323,005

Finance leases receivable and loans to customers

Thecroup The Bank

2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GaP GaP

Neither past due nor impaired:
Regular 13,810,269 19,184,670 4,796,975 4,672,974
Watch list 121,394 - 121,394 _____________

13,931,663 19,184,670 4,918,369 4,672,974

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

Thecroup TheBank

2015 2014 2015 2014
GaP GBP GaP GBP

Past due and impaired: 1,315,242 - 1,315,242 ______________

The Impaired facilities are those credit facilities with payments of interest and/or capital overdue by 90 days or more or where the
Group has reasons to doubt the eventual recoverability of funds.
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Colic ten/for impaired finance leases receivable and loans to customers

Collaterals consist of both moveable and immoveable assets.

The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Immovable property 3,889,473 - 2,117,913
Moveable property 22,026,641 - 7,589,913

25,916,114 - 9,707,826 _____________

Liquidity risk
The Group defines liquidity risk as the current or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from an institution’s inability to
meet its liabilities when they fall due.

Management of liquidity risk
The Groups approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group’s reputation.

The Group monitors its liquidity position on a daily basis. The Group maintains a portfolio of short-term liquid assets, largely made
up of cash and cash equivalents, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained with the Group as a whole.

All liquidity policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by the BoO, which is subject to a liquidity limit imposed by
the regulator. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the daily monitoring of liquidity procedures and ratios.

Liquidity gaps showing size and maturity mismatches of assets and liabilities together with liquidity stress testing are also being
established.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Bank’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings, based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The analysis includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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The Group -2015

Carrying amount Gross outflow Less than 1 month Between land 3 Between 3 Between lands Total
including interest months months and 1 years

year

GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP

Amounts owed
to Customers 8,941,734 9,888,843 - - 1,250,363 8,638,480 9,888,843
Amounts owed
to banks 8,525,529 9,035,086 761,932 570,813 2,782,137 4,920,204 9,035,086
Debt securities
in issue 1,060,000 1,192,273 - - 82,588 1,109,685 1,192,273

18,527,263 20,116,202 761,932 570,813 4,115,088 14,668,369 20,116,202

The Group - 2014

Carrying Gross outflow Less than ‘month Between 1 and 3 Between 3 Between land S Total
amount including interest months months and 1 years

year

GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP

Amounts owed
to customers 884,000 958,034 - - - 958,034 958,034
Amounts owed
to banks 15,000,000 16,330,214 - 1,304,190 4,312,499 10,713,525 16,330,214
Debt securities
in issue 860,000 986,165 - 986,165 986,165

16,744,000 18,274,413 - 1,304,190 4,312,499 12,657,724 18,274,413

The Bank -2015

Carrying amount Gross outflow Less than 1 Between land Between 3 Between land Total
including month 3 months months and 1 5 years
interest year

GBP Gel’ GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP

Amounts owed
to customers 3,941,734 9,888,843 - - 1,250,363 8,638,480 9,888,843
Debt securities in issue 1,060,000 1,192,273 - - 82,588 1,109,685 1,192,273

J,001,734 11,081,116 - - 1,332,951 — 9,748,165 11,081,116
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The Bank -2014

Carrying amount Gross outflow Less than Between 1 Between 3 Between land Total
including 1 month and 3 months and 5 years
interest months lyear

GBP GBP GOP GBP GOP GOP GBP

Amounts owed to 884,000 958,034 - - - 958,034 958,034

customers.
Debt securities in 860,000 986,165 - - - 986,165 986,165

Issue.

1,744,000 1,944,199 - - - 1,944,199 1,944,199

Assets available to meet these liabilities include cash at bank and finance lease receivables.

Residual contractual maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities
The table below analyzes the principal assets and liabilities with contractual maturities that are recognised in the statements of
financial position into relevant maturity groupings, based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to their contractual
maturity date.

The Group — 2015

Between 3
Lessthan3 andl2 Betweeni

months months and 5 years Total

GOP GOP GOP GOP

Assets
Finance lease receivable 1,666,074 3,419,657 8,350,667 13,436,398
Loans to customers 65,276 372,880 1,372,351 1,810,507
Cash and cash equivalents 7,029,012 - - 7,029,012

8,760,362 3,792,537 9,723,018 22,275,917
Liabilities
Amounts owed to customers - 559,000 8,382,734 8,941,734

Debt securities in issue - - 1,060,000 1,060,000

559,000 9,442,734 10,001,734
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The Group -2014

Between 3
Less than 3 and 12 Between 1

months months and 5 years Total

GBP GBP GBP 6W’

Assets

Finance lease receivable 23,333 5,466,316 12,053,458 17,543,107

Loans to customers - 315,346 1,326,317 1,641,563

Cash and cash equivalents 2,461,703 - - 2,461,703
2,485,036 5,781,662 13,379,775 21,646,373

Liabilities
Amounts owed to customers - - 884,000 884,000
Debt securities in issue - - 860,000 860,000

- - 1,744,000 1,744,000

The Bank -2015

Between 3
Less than 3 and 12 Between 1

months months and 5 years Total

GBP GBP GBP GBP

Assets
Finance lease receivable 474,407 1262,095 3,457,862 5,194,364
Loans to customers 35,291 191,594 812,362 1,039,247
Cash and cash equivalents 6,459,903 - - 6,459,903

6,969,601 1,453,689 4,270,224 12,693,514

Liabilities
Amounts owed to customers - 559,000 8,382,734 8,941,734
Debt securities in issue - - 1,060,000 1,060,000

- 559,000 9,442,734 10,001,734

The Bank - 2014

Between 3
Less than 3 and 12 Between 1

months months and 5 years Total

61W GBP GBP GBP

Assets
Finance lease receivable 21568 1,696,968 2,589,773 4,308,309
Cash and cash equivalents - 12,251 352,414 364,665

322,988 - - 322,988

Liabilities 344,556 1,709,219 2,942,187 4,995,962
Amounts owed to customers
Debt securities in issue - - 884,000 884,000

860,000 860,000
1,744,000 1,744,000

page 54



AGRIBANI( PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads
(not related to changes in the obligor’s/issuer’s credit standing) will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

Exposure to price risk and currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

At balance sheet date, the Group was not significantly exposed to price risk or currency risk on balances that were denominated in
a currency other than its functional currency.

Exposure to interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group is not exposed to any interest rate risk.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group’s processes
personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risk such as those arising
from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behavior. Operational risks arise from all the
Group’s operations.

The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Group’s
reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior
management. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall standards for the management of operational risk in
the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of transactions;

- requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- documentation of controls and procedures;

- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and proceduresto address
the risk identified;

- development of contingency plans;

- training and professional development;

- ethical and business standards; and

- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.
Capital allocation for operational risk is based upon the basic indicator approach which takes 15% of the average net interest and
non-interest income of the Group for the last three years. The operational risk capital allocation for the Group was GBP 186,174
(2014: GBP 97,028) and for the Bank it amounted to GBP 82,022 (2014: GBP 69,854).

Capital risk management
The Group’s capital managment approach ensures sufficient level of capitalisation to manage the risk exposures at hand while
enabling business growth and providing adequate returns to the shareholders Risk capital management does not in any way
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substitute risk mitigation measures. It is vital that the structure of limits and thresholds should be able to prevent concentrations of
risk from building up in such a way as to compromise a significant portion of the Group’s capital resources.

The Basel Ill implementation program together with the ICAAP implementation have been assigned to the Group’s senior
management and will be executed in parallel to the growing operations of the Group.

Capital management is under the direct control of the SoD. At reporting date, the Group’s funding was completely based on own
funds (Tier 1) and so was the Eligible Capital.

The following table shows the components and basis of calculation of the Bank’s Capital Adequacy ratios.

The Group
2015 2014
GBP GBP

Own funds
Tier 1
-Ordinary shares 6,500,000 6,500,000
-Accumulated losses (1,194,161) (598,431)
- Intangible assets (20,367) (177,101)
- Deferred tax asset (165,179) (412,903)

5,120,293 5,311,565
Additional own funds
Collective provision 17,965 -

5,138,258 5,311,565

Face value Risk Face value Risk
weighted weighted

assets assets

2015 2015 2014 2014

GBP GaP GBP GBP

-Cash and cash equivalents 7,029,012 1,405,802 2,461,720 492,344
-Finance lease receivable 13,436,398 13,436,398 17,543,107 17,543,107
-Loans to customers 1,310,507 1,810,507 1,641,563 1,641,563
-Deferred tax asset 581,183 874,333 - -

-Other assets 1,329,115 1,308,748 1,577,292 1,476,626
24,186,220 18,835,738 23,223,682 21,153,640

Operational risk 186,174 97,028

Total Risk Weighted Assets 19,021,962 21,250,668

Capital Adequacy Ratio
Tier land Total Capital Ratio 28-15% 25.11%
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The Bank

2015 2014
GBP GBP

Own funds
Tier 1
-Ordinary shares 6,500,000 6,500,000
-Accumulated losses (1,102,484) (768,684)
- Intangible assets (454,209) (177,101)
- Deferred tax asset (165,179) (412,903)

4,778,128 5,141,312
Additional own funds
Collective provision 17,965 -

4,796,093 5,141,312

Face value Risk weighted Face value Risk weighted
assets Assets

2015 2015 2014 2014
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Credit risk
-Cash and cash equivalents 6,459,903 1,291,981 323,005 64,573
-Investment in subsidiary 1,857,159 1,857,159 1,857,159 1,857,159
-Finance lease receivable 5,194,364 5,194,364 4,308,309 4,308,309
-Loans to customers 1,039,247 874,433 364,665 364,665
-Deferred tax asset 581,188 1,228,168 - -

-Other assets 1,178,211 1,144,747 1,119,437 1,037,669
16,310,072 11,590,852 7,972,575 7,632,374

Operational risk 82,022 69,854

Total Risk Weighted Assets 11,672,874 7,702,229

Capital Adequacy Ratio
Tier 1 and Total Capital Ratio 41.09% 6736%

30. Events after the reporting period

There were no significant events after the reporting period which in the opinion of the Board of Directors requires disclosure in the
financial statements.
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31. Registered office

The registered and principal office of AgriBank plc is Level 1, SkyParks Business Centre, Malta International Airport, Luqa LQA 4000,
Malta.

32. Assets held for realisation

The assets held for realisation mainly comprise movable properties that were held as collateral for outstanding financial lease
receivables, which properties were taken into the possession of the Group and the Bank following defaults by the counterparty.
The Bank’s policy is to dispose of such assets within a reasonable timeframe, which is generally not more than twelve months from
the date of possession, unless events or circumstances which are beyond the Bank’s control extend the period to complete the
sale. Such assets meet the criteria for classfication as non-current assets helf ro sale in accordance with IFRS 5. These properties
are classified within Level 3 and the techniques and the inputs applied by the Bank in measuring their fair value are similar to those
described in Note 15.

33. Encumbered and unencumbered assets

As at 30 June 2015 the Group had GBP1O,000,198 (2014: GBP14,511,696) of encumbered assets and and the Bank had GBP
9,013,294 (2014: GBP 0).
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The Bank’s three year summary

A) STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 2013/2015

Year from Year from Period from
lJul2Ol4to 1JU12013 to 26JUl2012to
301un2015 30JUn2O14 30iun2013

GBP GBP GBP

Revenue

Interest income 440,465 649,657 361,223

nterest expense (167,229) (47,811) (8,959)

Net interest income 273,236 601,846 352,264

933,261 14,477 5,253
Fee and commission income (230,941) (187,980) (81,887)

Fee and commission expense 702,320 (173,503) (76,634)

Net fee and commission expense
975,556 428,343 275,630

Net operating income 248,834 -

Other income

Employee compensation and benefits 482,469 395,590 251,991

General administrative expenses 745,700 646,169 456,902

Amortisation of intangible assets 61,166 60,397 23,560

Depreciation of PPE 37,604 36,746 14,183

Net impairment losses 401,483 - -

Total expense 1,728,422 1,138,902 746,636

(504,032) (710,559) (471,006)
Loss before tax

202,399 246,908 165,973
Deferred tax credit

Loss for the year/period total comprehensive
loss for the year/period (301,633) (463,651) (305,033)
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B) STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR THE PERIOD 2013/2015

2015 2014 2013
GBP GBP GBP

6,459,903 323,005 365,969
Assets 5,194,364 4,308,309 6,081,507

Cash and cash equivalents 1,039,247 364,665 -

Finance lease receivable 1,857,159 1,857,159 -

Loans to customers 20,367 177,101 223,949
Investment in subsidiary 158,399 191,714 212,178
Intangible assets 615,303 412,903 165,973
Property, plant and equipment 205,000 - -

Deferred tax 629,080 174,187 125,084
Assets held for realisation 152,268 163,532 110,144
Other assets 16,331,090 7,972,575 7,284,804
Prepayments and accrued income
Total assets

Liabilities
Amounts owed to banks 8,941,734 884,000 884,000
Amounts owed to customers 1,060,000 860,000 80,000

718,016 264,468 27,420
Debt securities in issue 181,656 232,791 98,417
Other liabilities -

Accruals 10,901,406 2,241,259 1,089,837
Current tax
Total liabilities

Equity 6,500,000 6,500,000 6,500,000
Share capital 11,149 - -

General banking risk reserve (1,081,465) (768,684) (305,033)
Accumulated losses 5,429,684 5,731,316 6,194,967

Total equity
16,331,090 7,972,575 7,284,804

Total liabilities and equity

Memorandum Items
Total Commitments 88,317 -
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C) STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD 2013/2015

Year from Year from Year from
1 Jul2014 to 1 Jul 2013 to 1 Jul 2012 to

30 Jun 2015 30 Jun 2014 30 Jun2013

GaP GBP GBP
Cash flows from operating activities

Interest and commission received 1,352,447 663,798 342,783
Interest and commission paid (79,829) (205,374) (110,673)
Cash payments to employees and suppliers (1,797,337) (816,999) (745,610)

Cash flows used in operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities (524,719) (358,575) (513,500)

(lncrease)/decrease in finance lease receivable
Increase in assets for sale (1,724,001) 1,364,615 (6,148,887)
Increase in amounts owed to banks and to (205,000) - -

customers
8,257,734 780,000 964,000Net cash generated from/(used in) operating ___________________ __________________ ________________

activities 5,804,014 1,786,040 (5,698,387)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment (55,218) (30,464) (178,045)
Purchase of intangible assets 1,557 (37,108) (247,509)
Investment in subsidiary - (1,857,159) -

Net cash used in investing activities (53,661) (1,924,731) (425,554)

Cash flows from financing activities
Amount received from subsidiary company - - 6,500,000
Amount advanced to parent company 568,287 98,626

(181,742) (2,898) (10,090)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

386,545 95,728 6,489,910
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year/period 6,136,898 (42,964) 365,969

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year/period

323,005 365,969 -

6,459,903 323,005 365,969
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D) ACCOUNTING RATIOS

2015 2014 2013

Net interest income and other operating income to total 597% 537% 378%
assets.

Operating expense to total assets 8.13% 14.29% 10.25%

Profit before tax to equity -9.29% -12.4% -7.61%

Profit after tax to equity -5.56% -8.09% -4.93%
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CAUTIONARY STATEM ENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains statements that constitute “forward-looking statements”, including but not limited to statements
relating to the anticipated effect of transactions described herein, risks arising from the current market crisis and other
risks specific to AgriBank’s business, strategic initiatives, future business development and economic performance. While
these forward-looking statements represent the Group’s judgments and expectations concerning the development of its
business, a number of risks, uncertainties and other important factors could cause actual developments and results to
differ materially from the Group’s expectations.

These factors include, but are not limited to:

(1) the extent and nature of future developments in the market segments that have been or may be affected by the
current market crisis and their effect on AgriBank’s assets and exposures;

(2) developments affecting the availability of capital and funding to AgriBank and other credit institutions, including any
changes in AgriBank’s credit spreads and ratings;

(3) other market and macroeconomic developments, including movements in local and international securities markets,
credit spreads, currency exchange rates and interest rates;

(4) changes in internal risk control and limitations in the effectiveness of AgriBank’s internal processes for risk
management, risk control, measurement and modeling, and of financial models generally;

(5) the degree to which AgriBank is successful in implementing its business and development plans, and whether those
plans will have the effects anticipated;

(6) changes in the financial position or creditworthiness of the Group’s clients, obligors and counterparties, and
developments in the markets in which they operate, including possible failures resulting from the current market
crisis and adverse economic environment;

(7) management changes and changes to the internal or overall structure of the Group;

(8) the occurrence of operational failures, such as fraud, unauthorised trading and systems failures;

(9) legislative, governmental and regulatory developments, including the effect of more stringent capital requirements
and of regulatory constraints on the Group’s activities;

(10) changes in accounting standards or policies, and accounting determinations affecting the recognition of gain or loss,
the valuation of goodwill and other assets or other matters;

(11) changes in and the effect of competitive pressures, including the possible loss of key employees as a result of
compensation issues or for other reasons;

(12) technological developments; and

(13) the impact of all such future developments on positions held by the Group, on its short-term and longer-term
—earnings, on the cost and availability of funding and on AgriBank’s capital ratios. In addition, these results.could

depend on other factors that we have previously indicated could adversely affect our business and financial
performance which are contained in our past and future filings and reports. AgriBank is not under any obligation to
(and expressly disclaims any obligation to) update or alter its forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events, or otherwise.

Rounding GBP amounts presented throughout this report may not add up precisely to the totals provided in the tables.
Percentages and percent changes are calculated based on rounded figures displayed in the tables and text and may not
precisely reflect the percentages and percent changes that would be derived based on figures that are not rounded.
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Independent auditor’s report Exemption number

to the members of

Agrisank plc

Report on thefinancial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AgriBank plc and its group set out on
pages 24 to 58, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 30 June 2015, and the
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for thefinancial statements

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities in the Directors’ Report on page
4, the directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the Group and the Bank financial
statements that give true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Companies Act (Cap. 386), and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
.cao~rJn...mikir~g.jhpse risk assessments,.thçauditor,ponsiders.internal,control,relevant,to•the_________________
preparation of the financial statements that give true and fair view in order Eo design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Bank and the Group. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)
to the members of

AgriBank plc

Op 111101?

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank
and its Group as of 30 June 2015 and of the Group’s and the Bank’s financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

Report on oilier legal and regulatory requirements

Auditor’s responsibility

The Banking Act (Cap. 371) requires us to report whether we have obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief are necessary for the purposes of our
audit, whether in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Bank so far as appears
from our examination thereof, whether the financial statements are in agreement with the books, and
whether in our opinion, and to the best of our knowledge and according to the explanations given to
us, the financial statements give the information required by Law in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view.

We are also required to state whether the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Opinion

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
are necessary for the purposes of our audit. In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept so
far as appears from our examination thereof and the financial statements are in agreement with the
books.

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Banking
Act,(Cap. 371) and the Companies Act (Cap 386).

Sarah Curmi as Director
in the name and on behalf of
Deloitte Audit Limited
Registered auditor
Mriehal, Malta

29 September 2015


